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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the
“Board”) of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 to all the
shareholders.

In 2022, despite the continuous challenges brought by COVID-19
pandemic in the first half of the year, the development plan of the
Group did not slow down. Our surgery and Day Procedure Centre
was officially opened in November last year, which means that
we can provide customers with more comprehensive medical and
healthcare services and more value-added services to fully take
care of and meet customers’ needs for different services.

At the same time, the Group has adopted a series of measures
during the period to further promote our business operations,
including:

1. optimising asset portfolios and planning those business
segments that have synergistic effects with the Company’s
future development strategies, so as to enhance the
Company’s operational efficiency and significantly improve
the Company’s profitability;

2. strategically cooperating with companies in Mainland
China with rich industry resources, enabling both sides
to complement each other in terms of resources and
strengths, improving the service level of the Company in
Mainland China, so as to achieve sustainable growth of the
Company’s results; and

3.  optimising the management structure and introducing talents
with great influence in the industry into our management
team, so as to significantly increase the Company’s
competitiveness.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

FUTURE PROSPECT

With the gradual slowdown of COVID-19 pandemic and
relaxation of quarantine policies in the second half of last year,
the economies of Hong Kong and Mainland China have quickly
resumed their high growth pace, and the number of mainland and
foreign business travelers and tourists visiting Hong Kong has
been further increasing, which shows that Hong Kong continues
to be one of the most attractive cities in the world. The operation
of the Group in the field of healthcare services is well established,
and by providing medical tourism services to mainland clients,
we can introduce exalted, high-quality medical aesthetic and
value-added healthcare services for clients to fulfill their needs,
which form a competitive industry service system in the market.
In the upcoming year, the Company will focus on its core
strengths, leverage on our advantages and integrate resources
in the industry, build a regenerative medical health management
ecosystem, comprehensively improve its service capabilities and
service quality and establish a good reputation in the industry.

Nevertheless, the Company is also willing to attract more quality
partners in the industry to share the dividends of development and
further replicate and develop the medical industry.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, acting on behalf of the Board, avail this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation for the prolonged and committed hard
work and contribution by our management and all employees. |
would also like to express my gratitude to the clients, suppliers,
partners and Shareholders of the Group for your longstanding
trust and supports. We will make greater efforts to develop our
businesses and look forward to your continued trust and support
for the Group.

By the order of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B am S T

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), is pleased
to announce the consolidated final results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

After the successive announcement of the first stage of customs
clearance arrangements by the Government of People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) and the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in January 2023, it means that the three-
year outbreak of 2019 coronavirus disease (the “Pandemic” or
“COVID-19”) has officially come to an end. Despite the potential
impacts of COVID-19 and regular lockdown measures brought to
our businesses during the pandemic, the Company adjusted its
business during the period while actively optimising our operation
and expanding our businesses when opportunities arose. During
the pandemic, the Group (i) disposed of non-core businesses
or businesses with low efficiency after the evaluation and
adjustments of various business systems in 2021, so as to devote
resources to our continuing operations; (ii) expanded our business
dimensions and set up a day surgery and medical centre; and (iii)
continued to develop our core healthcare service and improved
our quality of services provided to clients. As such, although the
first two quarters of 2022 were still affected by the pandemic,
starting from the third quarter, the results of the healthcare
products and services segment have substantially improved due
to the ease of the pandemic. It is believed that after the economy
resumed to normal, the relevant business will further improve.

The Board will continuously evaluate the business environment,
the existing business portfolio and the income streams of the
Group and improve its profitability. Although the economy has
begun to resume growth, after being impacted by the pandemic in
the past few years, the Company will continue to closely monitor
our general administrative expenses and operating costs and
cooperate with more business partners to obtain more quality
clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E MO

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Healthcare products and services

The Group has provided healthcare products and services to its
customers in Hong Kong since December 2015 and commenced
selling health and medical memberships in the PRC in 2021. There
are currently two medical aesthetic and medical centres in Hong
Kong and the PRC. One of the centres, namely the Hong Kong
International Regenerative Centre, is located in Tsim Sha Tsui,
Hong Kong. The other centre is located in Jiangsu, the PRC. The
medical centre in the PRC is operated by a designated service
provider which is a limited liability company in the PRC, namely
Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (F /T 2= g8k
RPIZBR R A).

In the medical aesthetic centres under the Group, a series of
health management services such as assessment of health
situation, treatment for detox, balance of the inner body,
nourishment organs, and enhancement of the immune system
will be provided. Beauty services are mainly non-surgical medical
aesthetic services, basic skincare, solutions for youthful skin,
hair revitalising, lines firming, partial remodelling and intimate
rejuvenation treatment.

The clients of the healthcare products and services segment are
mainly from Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group mainly rely on
the quality brands established by medical aesthetic centers over
the years to attract customers through the referrals by existing
customers, co-operated doctors and professional therapists as
well as online and offline advertisements. The Group has over
2,000 active clients and we collect payments upon their visit after
their treatments, services or purchase of products or they may
choose to settle the charge by prepayment.

The major suppliers of the healthcare products and services
segment are mainly distributors of medical products and devices.
The Group reached its suppliers through referrals from agents and
online platforms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B am S T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
Healthcare products and services (Cont’d)

The Group and co-operated doctors provide trainings to the
staff to understand the objective and services of the healthcare
products and services segment, so clients are offered unique
suggestions for health assessment and treatment solution to
cater for their individual needs. Prime location, sound reputation,
recognized hygiene standard, cozy environment of the medical
aesthetic centres together with the advanced treatment devices
prove that the facilities and equipment of the Group can enhance
the loyalty of clients and attract new clients. The healthcare
products and services segment mainly use social media as a
way of promotion. The Group will from time to time source better
treatment devices to be provided to the clients so as to gain more
positive feedbacks.

Although COVID-19 pandemic has caused a short-term impact
on the performance of the Group, it did not affect the long-term
development plan of the Group and the resources invested in our
businesses, so as to broaden the client and membership base and
further expand the healthcare products and services segment and
increase the market share.

Since the fourth quarter of last year, although the COVID-19
pandemic has eased and the economy has returned to normal,
the public’s concern to healthcare has been increasing. The
medical brands under the Group participated in various large-
scale exhibition activities, so as to enhance the promotion of
healthcare and the knowledge relating to COVID-19 to the public.
In addition to attracting clients and partners, such action will
help seize market opportunities more effectively. Upon relief of
pandemic situation and relief of the lock down measures in the
first half of the year, increasing number of customers in China and
Hong Kong visited the centres for consuming various health and
beauty services, hence leading to a boost in the performance of
the healthcare products and services segment.

The Directors considered that the healthcare products and
services segment have great potential and it is the plan of the
Company to further expand this business. However, in view of the
recent uncertainties in the global markets and the uncertain pace
of economic recovery, the Company has been keeping an eye on
the latest development of market conditions from time to time and
adopt expansion measures in this segment which may include
opening more centres and/or co-operating with hospitals and/or
sanatorium with more quality services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E MO

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group continues to strive for opportunity to widen its business
scope in the medicine industry and reallocate its resources when
appropriate, to strengthen and maintain as one of the leading
pioneers in the healthcare products and services sector.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$231.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a
decrease of 18% from last year (2021: HK$282.9 million). Gross
profit decreased by 44% to approximately HK$37.62 million
from last period (2021: HK$67.7 million), whereas gross profit
margin decreased from 24% of last year to 16% of this year. The
Group recorded a profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 of
approximately HK$4.555 million (2021: HK$13.3 million).

The overall decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
implementation of the tightened COVID-19 prevention and
control measures in the PRC and Hong Kong during the period,
while the revenue of the healthcare products and services
segment decreased due to the pandemic. During the year under
review, the Group incurred a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$4.555 million, as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$13.3 million for last year. The main
reason of which was that the decrease in revenue led to the
decrease in profit. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company per share was
HK$0.002 (for the year ended 31 December 2021: HK$0.02).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$25.817 million,
representing an decrease of 54% as compared to last year (2021:
HKS$47.4 million), which mainly attributed to an decrease in
revenue in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B am S T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Net Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded net current assets
of HK$90.927 million (2021: net current assets of HK$111.1
million) and net assets of HK$158.1 million (2021: net assets
of HK$147.0 million). The net current assets and net assets
was mainly attributable to the profit of the year from continuing
operations incurred during the Reporting Period. The Board will
closely monitor the development and operation of the continuing
operating businesses and improve the financial position of the
Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$1.85 million (2021: HK$9.90 million).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$249.093 million (2021: HK$258.4 million),
while its current liabilities stood at approximately HK$158.166
million (2021: HK$147.3 million), representing a net current assets
position with a working capital ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) of 1.58 (2021: 1.75). The gearing ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2022, calculated as total bank and other borrowings
to total equity was 0.46 (2021: 0.36).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy. To manage the liquidity risk,
the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time
to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The
Directors consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is manageable. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to
take prudent measures such as hedging when appropriate actions
are required.

Bt 7l EE (48)
FEE
RZTE_—_F+-A=+—8H XEBESE

ﬁbﬁéi%fﬁ%,%?,oooiﬁﬁ(:%:—i :
mENE EFE 111,100,000/ ) N B EFE
158,100,000;‘%7_1(:;?:—¢ D RENE EFRE
147,000,000/87C) - mBEEFERBEEFE
TE %’IEA#&iH}%WFEE’miﬁiﬂ<<<M%
RN BEFeBEBYEIHELEER
MR REZ BN Iaﬁz%zk%lmﬁﬁxﬁkﬁo

MEBEEZRIBEER
B RI|ITAE
NZBE-_—_F+-A=+—8 A"&EEHER

& MIRTTAE 41,850,000/ T (— &2 = —
9,900,000/ 7T °

EELESREEHBERFE

RZEBE_—_F+=_A=+—8 ' XEERK
g & E 4 A 249,093,000 T ( —Z FE = —
& 1 258,400,000 L) r MABAEEBEH A
158,166,000/ o ( =T = —F : 147,300,000
Bir) ERNFRBEERN  MEEESL

R(RHEELREBAMGE)A1.58(ZFE=—F :
1.75) c AEBR-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H#&%
RO HMEREEEERSEBETENEER
ﬁthﬁom(_f——i 0.36) °

B HR
7K 5 (51 34 B 75 AR SRR BB 1A A 0 7 IR R

REERBDETRER EFSRIEREAKE
MRBESMRN  WERAKREBNEE - B1&

BREMEREORDESRBEBTHTHOE
SHE -
S EE . B

AEENEBRS  BERABEIZZUAARE
RETLEE EFR 7%$’§I29|\EHMX
1 o B IR B A AR BE YR RN R B O S I L B
RIERAFER R PEEEREE -

12 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E MO

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Reporting Period.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no capital and other
commitments.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save for the Company’s investment in various subsidiaries, the
Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2022.

CHARGES OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material charge of
assets or contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plans for material investment or capital assets as at
31 December 2022. However, the Group will continue to seek
investment opportunities in line with the strategic development of
the Group both at home and abroad to promote the sustainable
and steady development of the Group.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 23 (2021: 21) employees
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$12.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$16.4 million).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
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Mr. Wang Chuang (“Mr. Wang Chuang”), aged 44, is an
executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the
Board. Mr. Wang Chuang joined the Group in October 2019. Mr.
Wang Chuang was accredited as a grade 1 health management
professional by the Hubei Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of China in May 2016 and a
psychological consultant by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of China in March 2019. He served as the
chairman of Hong Kong Bomei (China) Company Limited* (F/&18
ZE B A &) between 2008 and 2019. Between 2015 and 2019
he acted as the chief executive officer of Changzhou XingKong
Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (/MM EEEEEXRFIZ AR AF]) and
the chairman of Jiangsu Xingkong Health Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.* (L2 = R EEA AR A R]). He served as a senior
executive of Jiangsu Zhenai Company Limited* (T#EE AR A
7)) between 2006 and 2008, a senior executive of Wuxi Shencai

and a senior executive of Changzhou Meichen Company Limited*
(BMERABRAFT) between 2002 and 2004. Mr. Wang Chuang
is the president of the Chamber of Commerce of Changzhou
Lishui* (5 M 2/KE &€ &) and the vice president of China’s
National Alliance for Maternal and Child Health Development* (&
Bl im 4h 2 IR #E 2R B B3). He was a committee member of the
Organization Committee of the 2017 Boao Forum for Biomedical
Sciences (2017 FHE LAY ESmiEMALZ §€) and the founder
of Bomei Angel Charity Fund* (8= X {FZEZE%).

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 37, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in January 2020. Mr. Tsang
has entered into a term of appointment with the Company for
a term of two years. Mr. Tsang was admitted as a solicitor in
Australia and Hong Kong in May 2012 and December 2013,
respectively. Mr. Tsang is currently a partner of Stevenson, Wong
& Co., specialising in corporate finance and commercial law.
Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor in laws degree and a bachelor
in commerce (accounting) degree, both from the University of
Melbourne, Australia in August 2008. Mr. Tsang obtained a master
in laws degree from the University of Melbourne, Australia in
August 2010. Mr. Tsang obtained the postgraduate certificate in
laws from the City University of Hong Kong in July 2011.
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Since May 2019, Mr. Tsang has been the company secretary of
Mabpharm Limited, a biopharmaceutical company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2181). As a company secretary,
he has been responsible for company secretarial matters for
the said company. Since November 2019, Mr. Tsang has been
the joint company secretary and authorized representative of
Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd, a real estate development
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2608), where he is responsible for company secretarial
matters. Since January 2020, Mr. Tsang has been appointed
as a non-executive Director of China Regenerative Medicine
International Limited, a high-end new-technology enterprise
principally engaged in research and development, production and
sales of tissue engineering and regenerative medicine products
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8158). Since January 2021, Mr. Tsang has been operated
as the joint company secretory of Sundy Service Group Co., Ltd,
an integrated property management service provider company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9608). Since September 2021, Mr. Tsang has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of CROSSTEC Group
Holdings Limited (“CROSSTEC”), a facade management services
provider company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3893). Since September 2021, Mr. Tsang has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
Sterling Group Holdings Limited, a manufacturing and trading of
apparel products company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1825). Since August 2022, has been the
joint company secretary and authorised representative of 1957 &
Co. (Hospitality) Limited, a restaurant operation and management
group listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8495). Since January 2023, Mr. Tsang has been appointed
as a non-executive Director of CROSSTEC.

From June 2019 to June 2020, Mr. Tsang was an independent
non-executive director of Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (“InnoTech”)
(a company which shares were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and delisted on 13 July 2021, stock code: 8202).
InnoTech was a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and its principal activities were (i) provision of outdoor
advertising business through different advertising media network;
(i) television advertising operation; (iii) the event management
business; (iv) seafood business; and (v) money lending business
in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the announcements of Inno-Tech
dated 1 June 2020, 3 July 2020 and 11 September 2020, Inno-
Tech received a letter from the Official Receiver’s Officer dated
9 June 2020 which stated that Gram Capital Limited has filed a
winding-up petition to the High Court of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against Inno-Tech for
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principal sum of HK$195,000. On 9 September 2020, Inno-Tech
was ordered to be wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in HCCW 82/2020 and the Official
Receiver was appointed as the provisional liquidator. Mr. Tsang
confirmed that he was not a party to such winding-up petition and
is not aware of any actual or potential claim that has been or will
be made against him as a result thereof.

Dr. Liu Ming (“Dr. Liu”), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group in December 2021.
He has been serving as executive director and a manager of
Shenzhen Jianda Information Technology Limited since 2018,
which is mainly engaged in the development and application of
sleep breathing monitoring products. Dr. Liu graduated from the
West China School of Medicine, West China Hospital of Sichuan
University in 1991 with a Doctor of Medicine degree. He served
in the Department of Otorhinolaryngology, Shenzhen People’s
Hospital (Level A) (the “Hospital”) from 1991 to 2016 and served
as the head of the Department of Otorhinolaryngology of the
Hospital since 1998. He has been served as Deputy Director of
the Hospital since 2006. He is currently a special expert of the
Hospital in the Department of Otolaryngology. He has more than
25 years of medical clinical and hospital management experience.
Dr. Liu has previously served as a general manager of a subsidiary
of the Company since May 2018 and resigned from that position in
August 2019.

Dr. Liu holds several community positions including the Standing
Director of the Seventh Committee of the Shenzhen Medical
Association, the Standing Committee member of the China
International Association for the Promotion of Health Care, and the
Standing Committee member of the Sleep Medicine Branch of the
Guangdong Association of Rehabilitation Medicine.
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Ms. Huo Chunyu (“Ms. Huo”), aged 49, is an independent non-
executive Director. Ms. Huo joined the Group in January 2020.
Ms. Huo obtained a bachelor degree from Hebei University of
Economics and Business (A 1L 482 K £). She has over 20 years of
commercial and professional experience with companies including
the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Hebei Branch (¥
T 8R1TR 4t & £ 77), Shijiazhuang Haowei Optoelectronic Thin
Film Technology Co., Ltd (ARHAERE A E FEREITAR A7)
and Hebei Youyuan Certified Public Accountants (i1t B R & 5tEb
ZT4F7). Since September 2012, she has been a Partner of Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants (2= & 51kl S 75 Ff).

Mr. Leung Man Fai (“Mr. Leung”), aged 65, has approximately
30 years of working experience in accounting, corporate
finance and corporate management. Mr. Leung graduated from
Manchester Polytechnic in the United Kingdom with a degree
of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and Finance awarded by the
Council for National Academic Awards of the United Kingdom in
July 1988. He also obtained a degree of Master of Commerce
in Accounting from the University of New South Wales in May
1990. Mr. Leung was a company secretary of Creative Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3992) from May 2018 to September
2021, which has been delisted from the Stock Exchange from
October 2021. Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive
director of Vital Innovations Holdings Limited (stock code: 6133),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
30 December 2020 and a company secretary of MediNet Group
Limited (stock code: 8161), a company listed on the GEM Board of
the Stock Exchange since November 2015. Mr. Leung has been a
member of the HKICPA since June 1991.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. The Group believes that high
standard of corporate governance provides a framework and
solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting
high standards of sound internal control, accountability and
transparency to all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
and also meeting the expectations of the Group’s various
stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
(the “CG Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, except for the
following deviations:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. As Mr. Wang Chuang was
appointed as both the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company, following the resignation of Mr. Wang Xuejun as
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company on
9 July 2020, such practice deviates from code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board believes that vesting the roles for both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1
of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. However,
the Board will keep reviewing the current structure from time to
time and appoint candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and
experience as chairman or chief executive of the Company, if
identified, to ensure compliance with the CG Code and align with
the latest development.
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CODES AND POLICIES
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out on the
GEM Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate,
which include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate,
timely and understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and accounting standards and regulations; prompt
internal reporting; and accountability for adherence to the Code
of Ethics. The Code of Ethics is also intended to promote the
ethical standards of all the employees, officers and Directors in the
workplace, and advocate high standards of professional conduct
and work performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company, financial performance of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
and its businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board had five Directors, including
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuang (chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (member of the Remuneration

Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee and member of
the Audit Committee)

(member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committeg)

(chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee)

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Mr. Leung Man Fai

Biographical details of each director and relationship between the
Board are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 14 to 17 of this annual
report.

As of the date of this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the
Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of the
Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals,
investment and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and
integrity of internal controls, risk management, financial
reporting and compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination
Committee and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the
CG Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest
financials with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

EE2(H&)
EFES2BAE

EEeFINBBRBRER
B2 ERRMBEREA -

CFRIERAE

o FUAKRBEZREEREIIRER

s BEEAKEZZERX XKBELBRZ:

e EUFERE IZREESE KREMR
C¥ct
s EEBHEAIES  ARERE - MBE2R

MESTERTERE }EE&% 2R

e HWERZZBEGZEFRAUNREZMIINE
T BIED

. ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂx%{’ﬁﬁ £ REMKRE 2 2®
NoBiE

e ERLEEEEE BEFgMEMRRZ
B BENGZER BEITEEAAAE
ERNEBEANLIRZTREBBE 0 MAE
TEERZELME °

EFERAKEZARERE  TREEFEERE
HTESEhSREEABRE - ﬁ%$$x$
HIVAREFeEM  -EEEBEARERAR
Z%%&ﬁ%‘ﬁ@&%@&%?i%ﬁﬂ
RmEHE - REEEXERTHZTAEXE
Cl2ik EEEERNEFTS2BKERMAE
FHEMN(TAZEHER]) - AZEHERE
ERINVBEEEAEEIZZMFNRE
HERARAZRR - MR RAIREL —EFE
K H NIRRT -

2022 i PEBEBERARERAR 21



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A s s
THEEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had appointed five
Directors, one of which was female. The Nomination Committee
was of the opinion that the Board consists of members with
diversified gender, age, education background, professional/
business experience, skills and knowledge.

Among all employees of the Group, male employees account
for 9.0% and female employees account for 91.0%. The
Group believes that the gender ratio of employees is within the
reasonable range.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and merger and
acquisition, is appropriate for the businesses of the Company.
The Board will review its composition from time to time taking into
consideration of the specific needs for the overall Company and its
subsidiaries’ businesses.

The following graph provides an analysis on the composition of the
Board as at the date of this report:
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Number of Directors  ZEZE AKX

6

5)

4
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& B

) 40-49
NED
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Designation Gender Age group

B 13z 51 FIRE

Remarks: &Ef# :

ED - Executive Director #{TE%

NED - Non-executive Director JE#ITE =S
INEDs - Independent Non-executive Directors ¥&3/ 3ETTE S

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for updating the Board on governance
and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
ensuring that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all Directors participated
in continuous professional development and had provided the
Company with records (if any) on their participation. The individual
training record of each Director for the Reporting Period is set out
below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Mr. Wang Chuang
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin
Dr. Liu Ming

Ms. Huo Chunyu
Mr. Leung Man Fai

>>>> >
WWWwm
00000

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/
workshops organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/
magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to
the latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable
legal and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate
activities, which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to article 116 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one
third of the Directors for the time being will retire from office by
rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall
be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been longest in the office since
their last re-election or appointment.

In accordance with article 99 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for reelection.

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in
relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects.

EE2(H&)
EFRBRBEZEMERE

ARAELHEERR  REZERAEHF
AREEZEERERE  BWHENELEE
JASTRI - RIRBE B FEETRA -

ZF  EEREE

ZEFESF—F FARBZESEZRE - kA
ZEEKBHREAZEE  AREME  &SA
EZNEFRESEERNEFTSHFELES -

REBEAXREMBIEZAA AR D FE1160E - R©
BEBRRBFAS L REKETES AHG
=N REEKBERE - AN HEFA
BIF=2BH REEFARNSREILE
PIMR=ZpZ2—2 A& - BFREEEHRA
FIEEERAZEUNRIRERBERZES -

RIBAANFER - EREEESZEIERER
REEFENELES  EHREEARATE
BREFKE  EREFHEEREBRET -

UTEHINEZEREE PHRFEMHHRE
ZEE:

F IR R R &

EERMREEECHESRAVRFE - RREER
BERAFRRANE B BOGRR 2 BE®ER - M
ABEREZ2FE  FHRFEMHHRRUARRD
TR EFAZEZEMRRZINEHNRAKEMR
AR B RH) T B SRR T -

2022 i PEBEBERARERAR 25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A s s
THEEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)
Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards
are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent or detect fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and organises additional meetings as and when
required. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen
days is given of a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend.
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Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held 11
meetings, of which 4 were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held

during the Reporting Period:

Name of Directors

Espns

EE2(H&)
EFERKRRAE(E)

HESE B2 RBNRGERHEE
HBH - RBEHAM  EFSHBTIIRE
& HP4RREREE - TREJEHNEER
HEHRRLFEERZIBR

Attendance/
Number of

Board Meetings
entitled to attend

Attendance/
Number of
General Meetings
entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2022 to (ZE==%—f—HZ HE/BREE B/ EREE
31 December 2022) ZEZZF+ZRA=+—H) BRRAEHH EEZegEYR
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Wang Chuang TREE 1/1 4/4
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin BB L L 1/1 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Ms. Huo Chunyu EETrt 1/1 4/4
Dr. Liu Ming ZlAET 1/1 4/4
Mr. Leung Man Fai RNERE 11 4/4

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In
addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary prepares minutes and/or written
resolutions and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The Company Secretary
also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

As explained in the section “Corporate Governance Practices” Mr.
Wang Chuang was appointed as both the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company, such practice deviates from
code provisions C.2.1 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and are subject
to re-election. All non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a term of two years
and they are required to retire by rotation and re-election at the
general meeting of the Company following their appointments in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Company in accordance with the written terms of reference
adopted by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall
have the following duties and responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions and disclosure in the corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
from time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper
corporate governance structure of the Company. It is primarily
responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. Under
the Board, there are currently 3 subcommittees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three
members who must be non-executive directors only, and the
majority thereof must be independent non-executive directors,
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee has been established since 4
July 2001 with written terms of reference which was revised on
16 March 2016 in compliance with the code provisions D.3.3 and
D.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Audit Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D) EEZES(E)

Audit Committee (Cont’d) ERZEEE (&)

. to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial e R EE - PHRFERBERER  UAEE
statements and the quarterly, interim and annual reports E HHEFERES  BRXEFEF
before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on: oL ERT -

() any changes in accounting policies and practices; () EFBERRER2EMMES

(i) major judgmental areas; iy FEHRHAEG @B

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (i) ABZMELERFE

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; (iv) FHELEBRARERREBE

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards; (v) #EBFEFREAIRER K&
and

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal (vij ETHBE2ZMmMAMGEM ML
requirements in relation to financial reporting; BOEEBRE

. to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and e i a AN B 2 BA TS EL A T ERE ) K R B
risk management systems and ensure that the management EEHE UHRREEEEEITERS -
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control HEEH R NS K&
system;

. to consider major investigations findings on risk e ZERYEFeFEExEREEREER

management and internal control matters as delegated ARG ETEETHAETRESHNTREKR
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s AEHRREFIRENDE
response;

o to review the external auditors’ management letter, any o ERINEZHEMHEIEE KHE - ZEERE

material queries raised by the auditors to management about @ BIARERB BT EmEEE
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control REMEMEAEE  URERERE
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board fE - W HBRESFg KFEEMREL A ME
will provide a timely response to the issues raised; and =N

o to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and e Rl ANEE et R ERE R -
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any EBZZE e BREREH  FATERFTHENRNZ
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain  {FfA=EH ' WE AEERNBYEXZR - £ 8
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and @A 2 HEEHEEIEERESHE @ X EERS
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to EEéfﬁLA;d%}@ﬁﬁHﬁ%,\

discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once RBMEHME - BEREZE ML LA A AEME

with the external auditor without the presence of the management IBE/S V7 BERT @ BEINEZZEMESE — K ©
of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 March
2022, six months ended 30 June 2022, nine months ended 30
September 2022 and audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be any
two members. During the Reporting Period, 4 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control of the Group. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Audit Committee
at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the Reporting
Period:

EEZE8E2(A)
FRESE (F)

ERZEGEBHAEEBE_T_—_F=A
E— EUJ:_“H BE_Z-_—_FA=+
BEANBAREBZE-_ZE=_—_FhLA=FTHILAI
BMACEEURBE_SE-_—_F+=_A=+—
AIEF Rz KEZGEE M B®mE

%V%E\QQE%% EEANBERERMBAK
c MHEBHE  BRERESHABTIRNER -
A ARERAKRE W H2RIEF RARE
Bl e TRHIERZEEXNERBEHELFE
ERZEgem2BR

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Audit Committee BEREEGHRERR to attend

(From 1 January 2022 to (====E=—F—E= HE BREHE

31 December 2022) —E-—F#+=A=+—8) 2EEAE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Leung Man Fai (chairman of Audit Committee) RS E(FERESELE) 4/4

Dr. Liu Ming Z|pEfE+ 4/4

Ms. Huo Chunyu EEEL L 4/4

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details
and are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the
case may be, for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference.

During Reporting Period, all members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a
year.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the
Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the
Board on its proceedings and recommendations after each
meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 1 meeting of
the Nomination Committee was held to review and recommend
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board.
Altogether the members of the Board bring a wide range of

igéﬁ /"3
EEEZEE (&)
REZEEEZNAETEARBSEMMEKE o

RBEESHE - REZESERITIREH - BN
BN EESRE  RE  AXEZT(EALRH

EE O SEFEREBHAAEFTETRERZD
HMBNES  EEPRARANBEREE - T

knowledge and experience to the Board, which contributes to & &} 7| }E%é/\ ek ENREHEERBIRESE
the effective direction of the Company. The following table shows EB&&=% 215
the attendance of the members of Nomination Committee at the
meetings of the Nomination Committee held during the Reporting
Period:
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Nomination Committee REZESHERR to attend
(From 1 January 2022 to —E-—F—A—HF HEBREHE
31 December 2022) T _F+=-A=+—H) 2EEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYIEHITES
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEEL T 1/1
Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of Nomination Committee) FRAET (e EZEE2F/E) 11
Mr. Leung Man Fai BB E 11
Remuneration Committee FHZESE

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July
2005 with written terms of reference.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once
a year.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the skill,
knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights,
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation
as to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate
goals and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of
those individual Directors and senior management.

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer
contributions to Provident Fund) of each executive Director/
senior management is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, taking into account the performance of the
individual, the inflation price index and information from
independent sources on the rates of salary for similar jobs in
a selected group of comparable organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined
by the Board after considering the individual’s relative
performance against the comparable organisations. The
fees paid/payable to the non-executive Directors take
into account factors such as effort and time spent, and
responsibilities of these Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)
(c) Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management.
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved
from certain aspects of the Group’s business activities
against targets, together with an assessment of corporate
and individual’s performance during the Reporting Period.
Bonuses payable to the executive Directors/senior
management are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board to ensure alignment of their
interests with those of Shareholders.

(d) Benéefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

(e) Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees,
suppliers and customers. The terms of the scheme are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. The movement of
share options under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 14 September 2011 during the Reporting
Period is set out in the section headed “Share Options” in the
Directors’ Report and note 37 to the financial statements.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by
the Company in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 1 meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Remuneration
Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held
during the Reporting Period:

%ﬁ@}\‘@%%@Eﬁﬁ’]?ﬁi/\%&%&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁi% °

RBESHE FHEESLRITIREH - BN
BRAUESIRSREEABZHMES - TX
HE @}Hi,\a ERBmERRBFEHFMEZ R

2gHRIBER

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Remuneration Committee FHNEEESREHE to attend

(From 1 January 2022 to —E--#—HA—HZF HE BREHE

31 December 2022) —T-—#+—-H=+—H) SREA

Non-Executive Director 'a'FiM‘TE?

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin LGB A 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITESE

Ms. Huo Chunyu EREEXT 1/1

Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 2IBR1E+ (HMHWES &+ &) 1/1

Mr. Leung Man Fai RNIEE A 1/1

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
development and accounts for such when making decisions.
Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as compliance officer of the
Company on 29 December 2020. The compliance officer is
directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with
the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

Mr. Khoo Wun Fat William has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company since 1 September 2022. In according
to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial year an
issuer’'s company secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. During the Reporting Period, Mr.
Khoo has complied with the rule by taking more than 15 hours of
relevant training courses and seminars. Therefore the Company
Secretary meets the qualification requirements under Rule 5.14 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, auditor’s remuneration
of HK$1,000,000 (2021: HK$1,000,000) was charged to the
Group. Among such fee, HK$1,000,000 (2021: HK$1,000,000)
was charged for the audit service provided by MCM (HK) CPA
Limited, the existing auditor of the Company who was appointed
on 7 December 2020. During the year, the fee for non-audit
services provided by MCM (HK) CPA Limited was HK$0 (2021:
HK$400,000).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
internal control system includes policies and procedures and limits
of authority governing the authority level and business processes.
It is designed to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The system is intended to manage rather than to
eliminate or eradicate risks.

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires.
Identified risks have been further assessed and evaluated by
the Management across the business lines. The risks have been
evaluated in terms of their impacts and the likelihood of their
occurrences. As part of the evaluation process, the risks have
been prioritized based on the evaluation results. Follow up action
on key identified risks are being taken by the management.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management
structure in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that
defines the three layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight,
risk monitoring and review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
audit department. The third line of defense is responsible for
the independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems. The external auditor
of the Group further complements the third line of defense by
independently auditing material internal controls over the Group’s
financial reporting processes and reports on material control
weaknesses to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

Internal Control

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee
and the Board with useful information and recommendations on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. During the Report Period under review, internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review with recommendations adopted to further enhance the
effectiveness of the internal controls. During the Reporting Period,
the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and considered them to
be effective and adequate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@) access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b) pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders
or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or
investors may be put to the Board through the following channels
to the Company Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Suite 2310-18,
Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong
Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3918 9005;

3. By fax at (852) 3168 8666; or

4. By email at crmi_adm@crmi.hk
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated
and key information of the Group available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and
its Shareholders and investors; and (v) the Company’s share
registrars in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all
share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors
with high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear and detailed information
of the Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders
through the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim
and annual reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting (for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
will be given). The Chairman as well as chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, the Directors are available to
answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s businesses at the
meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
He should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
The management will ensure the external auditor to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders
have statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and
put forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

According to the Company’s articles of association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. General meetings may also be convened on the
written requisition of any one member of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by the share
registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are published
on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Suite 2310-18, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (ii) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/
documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed
by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and
consent of publication of his/her personal data. The period for
lodgement of the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient
time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the
Candidate as a Director without adjourning the general meeting,
Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as soon as
practicable, say at least 10 business days prior to the date of the
general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness to comply with the code provision of C.2.8 of the CG
code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company will updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Briefing and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are
conducted regularly. The Company also maintains its website
(www.crmi.hk) to provide an alternative communication channel
for the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication
and Company’s latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’s information.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a whistle-blowing policy to provide
a safe and confidential reporting mechanism and to ensure
that all employees are reported properly on all suspected and
internal misconduct. The policy outlines the reporting procedures,
including but not limited to, if an employee aware of discrimination,
bribery, extortion fraud and corruption, and any actual or
suspected violation case that against to improper, unethical and
inappropriate concerns on policy. Employees are encouraged
to raise concerns about suspected misconduct, malpractice or
irregularities in confidence. All reported cases will be promptly
handled and thoroughly investigated by the designated personnel
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the “Group”, “Our”
or “We”) are pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period” or “2022”) and express
the Group’s commitment to sustainability. This ESG Report
discloses the management, policies, performance, targets and
feedbacks of the business in providing services of the Group in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in
relation to sustainable development. The Group would like to take
this opportunity to present ESG performance to all investors and
stakeholders, and put forward the commitments and contributions
on social responsibility.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) enclosed in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For details of the Group’s
financial performance and corporate governance issues, please
refer to the previous sections of the annual report of which this
ESG Report forms a part of.

Statement from Board

The 2021 and 2022 Covid-19 challenges underscored the
significance of becoming a sustainable and responsible
corporation. CRMI aimed to instil a fresh emphasis on
sustainability throughout the organisation. We strive to make
people healthier, the communities stronger, and environment more
vibrant. The Group is strongly committed to sustainability and
as such it strives to implement related principles and strategies
throughout our businesses. We have developed an ESG structure
to ensure ESG aligning with its business strategy and to integrate
ESG management into its business operations and decision-
making process.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONT’D)
Statement from Board (Cont’d)

Our Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
issues and sets out ESG management approach, strategy,
priorities and objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s
ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board
regularly evaluates and determines ESG-related risks and
opportunities of the Group, as well as reviews its performance
against ESG-related targets. The Board is also responsible for
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG
Report.

ESG Taskforce

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under the
Board’s delegations, we established the ESG Taskforce (the
“Taskforce”). The Taskforce is composed of core members from
various departments, which facilitates the Board’s oversight of
ESG matters. The Taskforce has the responsibility for collecting
and analyzing ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the Group’s
ESG performance, keeping track of and reviewing the progress
made against the Group’s ESG-related targets, ensuring
compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations, assisting in
conducting materiality assessment and preparing ESG reports.
The Taskforce arranges meetings regularly to evaluate the
effectiveness of current policies and procedures and formulates
appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of
ESG policies. The Taskforce reports to the Board periodically,
assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities, ensuring the implementation and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

Our values

1. To become a global leading force in medical innovation;

2. To develop cutting-edge medical products and
technologies with a focus on innovation in regenerative
medicine;

3. To become one of the global market leaders in aesthetic

medicine and medical services industries; and

4. To become one of the global market leaders in healthcare
products and services.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONT’D)
Statement from Board (Cont’d)
Our values (Cont’d)

As a healthcare service company, we focus on medical services
and desire to achieve healthy lives and promote human well-being
during our course of business. In recent years, healthcare has
become a hot topic around the world. The COVID-19 pandemic
has further aroused the public’s pursuit for health maintenance.
We will focus on human health by providing regenerative medicine
and medical innovations, building a regenerative medicine health
management ecosystem, comprehensively improving our service
capabilities and quality, and establishing a good reputation in the
industry. With our courage to take innovative measures, the Group
has contributed to breakthroughs in medical innovation over the
years, thus benefiting to health of mankind.

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation regarding our
corporate social responsibility model, as shown in below,
on different aspects, including stakeholder communication,
environmental protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair
operation, social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Item
F3% Aspects
1 Stakeholder Communication

Environmental Protection

Employee Welfare

2

3

4 Health and Safety
5 Fair Operation
6

Social Contribution

7 Maintain Sustainability

We continuously strengthen communication and relationship
with investors. Designated senior management personnel keep
close communication with shareholders and investors through
emails, teleconference, one-to-one meetings, participation in
broker forums and non-trading roadshow or other forms, so as to
ensure shareholders and investors getting latest information of the
Group in a fair and timely manner, helping them make investment
decisions. We will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries
from investors. We have conducted materiality assessment to
identify material matters in our businesses which have significant
influence on economy, environment and society, and are most
important for stakeholders. In accordance with evaluation
results, we hope to make the commitments and undertake the
responsibilities to all stakeholders.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Comply or
Explain” provisions and the four Reporting Principles as required
by the ESG Reporting Guide:

1.

Materiality: This ESG report disclosed: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG
factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted,
a description of significant stakeholders identified, and
the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement. For detail process to identify and the criteria
for the selection of material ESG factors, please refer to
section “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: ESG data are presented numerically, so our
ESG performance can be compared against our peers,
industry standards and our previous year’s performance.
For the methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption, please refer to
section “Environmental”.

Balance: The information in the report shall be unbiased.
There will be no omission, misleading presentation format
and selections that may inappropriately influence the
decisions of a stakeholder.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any
other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
This report follows a consistent range of statistics and the
statistics scope of 2022 corresponds with that of 2021.

Reporting Boundary

The ESG Report covers the Group’s ESG performance in the
provision of healthcare products and services in Hong Kong.
In setting the reporting boundary, the Board of Directors has
performed internal analysis on an annual basis and identified the
reporting scope covers the Group’s major source of revenue
from Hong Kong. The data and disclosures reported in this ESG
Report were prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy
documents and other internal records.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent
and innovative employees who deliver quality services to clients
and business partners and make worthwhile contributions to
several stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups
of stakeholders that are related to its main business. These
stakeholders include customers, employees, government, media,
shareholders and investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to long-term
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order
to achieve long-term prosperity.

Stakeholders Communication Channels

FHENSE

AEEABRBORDBREXZBOAISER
REBERIFUARANEFPABERHIEHREE
REBEEHAEE BN EFELEEENRRAN
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Expectations

BHE BEEE HE
Internal Directors and . E-mail ° Health and safety
R B Employees B fRERZE
E=NES
° Mobile communication application ® Equal opportunities
mENBFZER FTERe
° Regular meetings . Remuneration and benefits
EHER B K A2 A
° Career development
ES 958
External  Customers o Company news updates o Product and service responsibility
SMER NS RRFTEE EmEREEE
° Conference o Customer information and privacy
& protection
B AR RALBIRE
° Customer service hotline
B BRI 2R
o Email, facsimile and phone
contacts
BE - FERERZBA TN
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Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations

0 & BBREE HE
Government ° Cooperate with the government ° Business ethics
BUF and regulatory authorities on EEEE

compliance inspections

LA RS ERAT R EEE MRS E

Complying with relevant laws and

regulations
e Conference E-TAEBER KL
& 2%
=
o Email, facsimile and phone
contacts
BE  FEREFBEIRN
Media ° Company website ° Giving back to society
wEe NGIFER ElEEHt &
° Social media network ° Environmental protection
R E RAERE

o Compliance operations

AmEE
Shareholders and Annual general meeting ° Complying with relevant laws and
Investors RERBERE regulations
BRRIEEE B HEBERNOER
° Company news updates
NelFEEHR . Disclosing latest information of
the corporation in due course
o Email, facsimile and phone MEHERTEEELER
contacts
B FERBFEBEIN *  Financial results
EE 3
o Stock Exchange’s website:
announcements, notices, o Corporate sustainability
reports, etc. 1AM AR 1T
BERXPTAL - R BERBES

° Press releases
FEEMm
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of
stakeholders on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, the
Group conducts the materiality assessment regularly. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and
industry practices, the Group identified and determined a list of
material ESG issues. The Group prepared a questionnaire based
on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to rate the potential
material issues according to their influence on stakeholder
assessments and decisions and their impacts on the economy,
environment and society. The results of the survey were analyzed
to develop a materiality matrix. The materiality matrix and the
identified material topics were reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and management and disclosed in the ESG Report.

The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG
issues:
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Materiality Assessment Matrix

BEEUDER

Importance of ESG Topics to the Group
ESGEFIEHALE s S2 M

v

Importance of ESG Topics to External Stakeholder

ESGEIRESIINFNEZEE N
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10

11

12

13

14

ESG Topic

R -HERERER

Product health and safety
EmEEkZs

Customer satisfaction
BEEWMEE

Employee remuneration, benefits and rights (e.g.
working hours, rest periods, working conditions)

ESE%?EMI A RS (IR REBREIER
b}

Customer information and privacy
BFERKILE

Greenhouse gas emissions

BE RN

Energy use (e.g. electricity, gas, fuel)

BERER(MES - KR - RED)

Mitigation measures to protect environment and
natural resources

IRERIE R KA E RABPELS i

Hazardous waste production

BERRYNEL

Employee development and training
(=585

Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing
procedure

R E SR BRI R

Anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff

RESFREIRMHORESE

Occupational health and safety

BERERLE

Air emissions

& R BE IR

Environmentally preferable products and
services

RIRE m MRS

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

EMFFE ()

ESG Topic
BRI -HERERERE
Observing and protecting intellectual property

rights
T AR PT AR EE AR

Product and service labelling

Em R RBRE

Diversity and equal opportunity of employees

BEZT(IRFEHRE

Environmental risks (e.g. pollution) and social
risks (e.g. monopoly) of the suppliers
HEFMRERR(053) Rt g AR
E)

Climate change

I 454

RIRE(E

(ﬁ[:] BE

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices, e.g. bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering
BEETRAINEE  BE -
B RREEREEA

Water use

IKEIRME A

BEERARE)A

Marketing communications (e.g. advertisement)

miGHEE(INES)

Seleotion and monitoring of suppliers

MERHEER
Non-hazardous waste production
BEBREVNES
Cultivation of local employment
11 3 7N 3 5 3%
Use of materials (e.g. paper, packaging, raw
materials)
MEHER (AR - 8% - R

Preventing child and forced labour
PrlEE T Rogd| 25T

Community support (e.g. donation, volunteering)

HEXFF(ER - ZETED)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONT’D)

The top issues that stakeholders most concerned are positioned
in the above ESG topic table in descending order. In 2022, the
key ESG areas of focus were product health and safety, customer
satisfaction, and employee remuneration, benefits and rights (e.g.
working hours, rest periods, working conditions).

Contact us

The Group greatly values stakeholders’ opinions and suggestions.
Stakeholders can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development
by emailing to: crmi_adm@crmi.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

52

A1 Emissions

Emission Control

The Group recognizes the importance of good
environmental stewardship and is committed to protect
and conserve the environment. The Group hopes that
the concept of environmental sustainability lies in all
aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price
and environmental impact when consuming resources
and materials. The Group closely monitors the energy
consumption and water consumption through the
concept that it is part of the communication priorities
to educate staff on the rationale of environmentally
friendly choices, and actual applications.

As principal operation is based in Hong Kong,
the Group is principally subject to the Hong Kong
environmental laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with the
relevant environmental laws and regulations and was
not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact
on the Group, including but not limited to Hong Kong’s
Water Pollution Control Ordinance (7K35 2 & i {5 1l)
and Waste Disposal Ordinance (B4 & {5171).

The senior management team is delegated to maintain
the Group’s sustainability. The representatives of
each operational department will actively manage
business in an environmentally and socially responsible
manner. The Group will meet annually to review the key
processes and identify possible aspects underlying the
operation of such department. The senior management
team will also discuss any significant aspects identified,
and design measures accordingly. These measures
will be documented for reference to ensure effective
implementation.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A BRE(E)
A1 Emissions (Cont’d) Al B (&
Maintain Sustainability BRI EZRE

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse RERE B KK B RS ES W5
impact of the businesses on the environment by W AN EBEIRBEN T ERE
controlling and reducing its emissions so as to ensure B MERBEAHERER  A£H
the sustainability of the environment as well as the ¥BEEFEER - AEBRREHA
Group’s business growth. The efforts being made FriEmy THe@4mT ¢

throughout the Reporting Period can be concluded as

follows:

Item Practices

FiE ®R

1 Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment.
BRELISRIRIZNEER -

2 Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental
protection.
BTRARBRERBRER  EZHR  HREREX

3 Creation of an environment for sustainable development.
BER B R RMIRIE

4 Provision of training for employees on environmental protection.

SEERHTABRERZRE -

5 Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel.

WO B REIRNEFE - BERME KR -

6 Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing the waste as much as possible.
WMAOBEREYEL - WRARHEMETIREBRER -

7 Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable
of conserving energy and reducing waste.

BERAREME - ARE R QLR MR D BEEY BV ERET - BT ERA Y

8 Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding
negative effects due to the Group’s development on the environment.
ANEEREHBBREE RO REREARERNEREREEKNEBETE -

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted RS R - & E A RS

comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental
management situations of all controlling subsidiaries to
facilitate the improvement and promotion of controlling
subsidiaries on environmental management, and
demanded the completion of its construction and
implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring
effective sustainable development of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there was no environmental
pollution incident in the Group.

RAENRREERRNER T ZEAR
L REZBRHNBARERRERES
EHNERRES @ WERKERHAT
REBEBRBEZLEN  AUERA
SEMAHERR - NREHE - A
SEWEELEFRFSREN -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A. IRIB(HE)
A1 Emissions (Cont’d) Al BEHY) (4E)
Air Emissions B B

Due to the Group’s business nature, it was not
involved in any industrial production nor possessing
any manufacturing facilities or motor vehicles during
the Reporting Period. Therefore, the Group did not
generate a material amount of exhaust gas emissions
during its operation.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) are mainly
resulting from electricity purchased and consumed
during operation of the Group. Due to the business
nature of the Group, GHG emissions were mainly
attributable to energy indirect GHG emissions. The
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of GHG
emissions reduction among employees.

The Group’s GHG emissions performance during the
Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Indicators’

R

Scope 1 Direct GHG Emissions ~ tCO,e

BE— ERAZTABHN BoE(LREE
Scope 2 Indirect GHG Emissions tCOe

E— : BRAZREBIN WoSREE

Total GHG emissions tCO,e

RERBHHAE W-EithER

Intensity of total GHG tCO,e/million revenue
emissions? WM-EtREE/BERE
RERBFHERE?

*

The increase in GHG emissions is mainly due to the
opening of a new medical center in the last quarter of
2022.

21.96

21.96

1.27

RREEE - ERAEBOEBLE
g B ESRAM T EAESHEES
FRERMERER - Bt - ~A5F
WERNEEBEEE RS ERIEN

BERB([BERE])HH

REREZEREREER(BE)TE
KERANEEEBKBIZNIINBEE A
o ENAKBEHERKLE - BER
BENTIEZREERFERLEREY
Mo AEEFESFETHTERT
EG SRS NRSEEHRVAEE
R MARE o

AEER & ERHE AR = REHHE
WA

Increase/
(decrease)

in percentage
AELER/(TH)

= 0.00%

20.80 5.58%

20.80 5.58%

1.01 25.74%

. BERBHERMEMEZHRE
T _ERETHIXHHE
B o
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

A1 Emissions (Cont’d)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and is based on, but not limited
to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to
prepare an ESG report — Appendix Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange.

tCO,e is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent.

Since the reporting scope only includes Hong Kong
region in both 2021 and 2022, the revenue of Hong
Kong region is used for calculating intensity data
which is approximately HK$17.23 million (2021:
HK$20.69 million).

Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste

The Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims
at minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount
of wastes produced during the course of the Group’s
business operations.

Item

755

Practice
B

Concept
B

A.

RE (&

)

Al BERY (&
BERB(EEREE ) HHK(HE)

Bt

1.

BERBHRBBA_SLRES
TR 0 TIAEARRR) R E R
RIRERCEXKBEEREZESH
MEOCEERERTE - DX STHE
SR A ) Ko Bt 22 BT 85 M ) KN fr]
BRE HEREARE M
RIERABIERERIES

= A (CRE B EEER
(LR g -

HR-ZZE-—GFER-_T - _FHR
LHEEAEESHE  FER
Mk ARETRERESED
#17,230,0008 L (=T =—%F :
20,690,000/ 7T ) °

BRYEHE

HEEREY

AREBEHEIT[3-RIER -

EERYE

ATHRER TR AREERGEE
BIETELNBERYMEE -

(@) Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable,
LR by using alternative materials, processes and procedures.
FRERABRME  RERREFRUEBEAITHEATRIEERBEEY
HEE -
(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials.
BxEA BEBRAEENEEZEDREERERANMHE -
(c) Recycling Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful
BIRABE substances from them, such as recycling packaging material and paper.

REAER SR A HREEPRRREAYE @ fINERBESRMHR
AR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A, BRE(E)
A1 Emissions (Cont’d) Al B (4E)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Cont’d) BEgRE([BERE )N (&)

Due to the Group’s business nature, non-hazardous
waste produced in the Group’s operations was mainly
composed of office waste and paper disposal and food
waste. To minimize its impact on the environment, the
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of non-
hazardous waste reduction among employees.

The Group’s non-hazardous waste disposal

performance during the Reporting Period was
summarized as follows:

Non-hazardous waste

BEBRRY

ERNAKENERBEE - ARELE
EENEEEENIEARIEDR
BEAKREKR - REERIREFR
2 AEEHSSFETHNERT
O EFED  NiEnESEHRIES
BEEYNESH -

AEERHENENEZEZYRE
RIEBALT

Office waste Kg 219.00
i YNE3Y) T
Paper disposal Kg 73.31
e T
Total non-hazardous waste Kg 292.31
BEBRYHE S )
Intensity of non-hazardous Kg/million 16.97
waster revenue
BEBRRYEE TR/BB

L&

The reduction in office waste and paper disposal

in 2022 is due to the success in promote an

environmentally friendly office.

Since the reporting scope only includes Hong Kong

in both 2021 and 2022, the revenue of Hong Kong
region is used for calculating intensity data which is

approximately HK$17.23 million (2021:

million).
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HK$20.69

Increase/

(decrease)

in percentage

2HEEFH

(T B&)

262.00 (16.41%)

450.00 (83.71%)

712.00 (58.95%)

34.41 (50.68%)
ingiﬂ’m# N E W) K & B AR o
WA TR I B IR R A EFT

B oo

HR_E-_—FR_T-__FHK

BEREEREEE  BEMLE
MRERRFEEERESED

717,230,000 T (ZF = — % :

20,690,000/ 7T) °
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

Al

Emissions (Cont’d)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Cont’d)

To demonstrate the Group’s dedication to waste
reduction, it has implemented paperless office. The
Group encourages its employees to utilize email and
online signature system for document review, signing
and communication where possible, reduce the
frequency of printing and/or copying, and reduce the
use of office paper. If necessary, employees are also
encouraged to re-use paper and conserve paper usage
by printing double-sided to the extent practicable.
Furthermore, the Group provides drinking water supply
equipment for the use by employees, meetings and
visitors. Employees are encouraged to bring along their
own reusable cups to reduce the use of plastic bottles.

Hazardous Waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, hazardous waste
produced in the Group’s operations was mainly
composed of clinical waste. The Group generated
0.09 tonnes clinical waste in 2022 during its operation,
which accounted for 0.005 tonnes per million revenue.
To minimize its impact on the environment, the Group
has established relevant guidelines for governing
the handling and disposal of hazardous waste. The
Group will separately manage, and store hazardous
waste produced and engage a qualified third-party
professional to handle such hazardous waste.

Sewage Discharges into Water and Land

Considering the Group’s business nature, sewage
discharged into water and land is considered
insignificant. As the Group’s wastewater is directly
discharged into the municipal sewage pipeline
network for further processing, the amount of water
consumption of the Group represents the wastewater
discharge volume.

A.

Rk (&)

Al

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT

B (E
BERB(EEREE ) HHK(HE)

RBRASERDBEZRYEORL
AEEEREREAND - AEE
HEEEEREFHHERR LEZRE
REB - RBEEUF - B IE]
R/ RZEEER - RRIBPRE
Mo MBBARE  ARETTSEREES
EOEAITERERARMEAER
SIEN o pEAN » RERBEKAKRME
UHEER @B EEFER - &f
BEBHAIEEERANONE - BDE
FHRER -

BEEERY

ERAEEMEREE  AEEEE
FraliEm B ZEEEY £ B 6 15K E
By AEBR T - —ENLEE
£0.00MAERREEEY) - HENBES
W %50.005MF o AR & HEEIRIEN T
2 AEEEREEEEVNEER
ZEHEEMIES - AEBEREESE
MEEEEMETEBEERFERE -
WEBFAERNEZHEEAERE
REBEEEY -

18 7k R 1 # BE 5405 7K

ERIANEENEBHEE - MAKRL
HBE A S KA R AT R E - AR
AEBGSKEEZEHEATBRSKE
W UEE—FEE  BMAEENH
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A2 HREH

A2 Use of Resources

58

The main resources used by the Group during
operation are electricity, water and paper. In order
to be an environmentally responsible corporation,
the Group strives to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of resources consumption in the
operation process for minimization of wastage and
avoidance of excessive usage of precious resources.

Energy Consumption

The energy consumption of the Group was primarily
attributable to the consumption of electricity. The
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of energy
conservation among employees.

The Group’s energy consumption performance during
the Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Types of energy

RER S B!

AEBGEEBBEFTEANTIZER
REN KEEER - BRABYHRER
BEENGER  AEBRNRSEKB
BHRERERNEER R - BEM
PRE - BPBEERLEEIR -

BEIFH #

S [ 11 B JROK R B R 3 B )
o AREHEGERTHAGRT
e %5EE - HIREEE HDEDR
-

REBER RS AREMNEREFERER
M

Increase/
(decrease)
in percentage

Bt EHA
(&)

Direct energy consumption kWh - = 0.00%
BELIREFRE T FLBF
Indirect energy consumption kWh 59,360.00 53,328.00 11.31%
— Electricity FE R

B RERE—E N
Total energy consumption kWh 59,360.00 53,328.00 11.31%
RERHEAE TRE
Energy consumption intensity kWh/million 3,445.15 2,577.48 33.66%
R ERESE revenue

FRE

BEWRE

The increase in indirect energy consumption is mainly
due to the opening of a new Surgery and Day Procedure
Centre in the last quarter of 2022.

Since the reporting scope only includes Hong Kong
in both 2021 and 2022, the revenue of Hong Kong
region is used for calculating intensity data which is
approximately HK$17.23 million (2021: HK$20.69
million).

: B RR R I )Y E E RN E

B FRE—FHAZ MBI
B HEEESL o

- HR T —FR_FT__FW
HKEHEERERS  FHAME
MBEEARAERERESEY
£17,230,0008 L (T = — 4 :
20,690,000/ 7T) °
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A2 Use of Resources (Cont’d)
Energy Consumption (Cont’d)

The Group also continuously implements “green”
concept with the following measures:

o Office power saving: Policy to turn off lights
when not in use, air-conditioning temperature
control, printer and computer hibernation
management, shut down of lights and
computers during lunch break, etc.

° Increase equipment efficiency: Efficiency
arrangements for equipment to undergo
regular maintenance in order to improve
their performance and dispose high energy
consumption equipment as part of the efforts to
conserve resources at source.

Water Consumption

The Group encourages its employees and clients to
develop habit of conscious water consumption so as
to reduce water consumption in its operation site. Due
to the geographical location of the Group’s operations,
the Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. To reaffirm the Group’s
commitment to water conservation, the Group targets
to display posters or other promotional materials in
prominent locations at its offices to further encourage
and promote water conservation.

A IRIB(E)
A2 BHREH (&)
BE R FE (4)

RSB IR 5B B DA T 1R e T T B 5 T AR
BIER:

e MAEME: BEFHERKHE
M¥ENE - ZFRBREZES - FIED
BEERAERERE - FRER
e MRS

o RIAREBREE  RHREELETT
EHRBEARTTEMEREE
BFERERE B HRRE LA
HEIR -

K

AEEZBEREMNEFPEKAER
IKE)EME - DAL D &8 55 P A9 A K
E - ERNARERBHOMIENLE - X
SEERBESBEN/KTELES
ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%OEﬁm$%lﬁ”%%
IKE G - AREEERIER
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A2

A3

Use of Resources (Cont’d)
Water Consumption (Cont’d)

The Group’s water consumption performance during
the Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Water consumption

AXkE

Total water consumption m?

Fk@s AV

Water consumption intensity m?/million

HAKZE revenue
NHEK/ BB
g

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to the Group’s business nature, the packaging
material mainly composed paper and plastic packaging
materials during its daily operation. The Group
consumed 0.0021 tonnes and 0.0707 tonnes paper
packaging and plastic packaging, respectively, in
2022, which accounted for 0.0042 tonnes per million
revenue. The Group encourages its customers to
develop the habit of bringing their own shopping bags
in order to reduce the packaging consumption at the
operating site.

Environmental Protection and Natural
Resources

Environmental Protection

Environmental protection is the responsibility of
every staff in the Group. Although the impact on
environmental and natural resources caused by the
Group’s operation is limited, the Group is committed
to sustainable development and delivering its premium
and quality products in a manner with minimal impact
to the environment resulting from its business activities.
Apart from those details disclosed in the section
“Emissions” and “Use of Resources” above, the
Group remains conscious of its potential impact, and
therefore actively adopts relevant preventive measures
and industrial best practice to further minimize the
potential impact on the environment and natural
resources.

A RIE(E)
A2 BR@EH (&)
FHK (&)

92.00

5.34

A3

REBE RN E BB AKKRER Tt an
T

Increase/

(decrease)

in percentage

Bk EH

(FB&)

108.00 (14.81%)

5.22 2.30%
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

A3

A4

Environmental Protection and Natural
Resources (Cont’d)

Indoor Air Quality

As indoor air quality is directly related to the health
and comfort of the Group’s employees, the Group
regularly monitors and measures the air quality of its
operation sites. During the Reporting Period, the indoor
air quality of the Group’s operation sites has remained
satisfactory. Air filtration systems are installed and
maintained periodically so as to ensure the efficiency
and effectiveness of such systems. As a result, the
Group’s indoor air quality remained at a satisfactory
level.

Climate Change

Climate change is already happening and causing
devastating consequences to different parts of the
world. As a responsible company, the Group strives
to reduce its environmental footprint as elaborated in
previous sections, and acknowledges the potential
impacts of climate change to the Group’s businesses.
Therefore, the Group has been actively collecting
stakeholders’ comments, and regularly updating
and implementing relevant policies as well as taking
climate-related risks into consideration during its
risk management processes to better mitigate these
impacts and adapt for a sustainable business model.

Physical risk

Extreme weather events are expected to occur with an
increasing severity in the future due to climate change.
These events, such as typhoons or floods, can pose
significant safety risks to its employees and damages
to its equipment. The Group has formulated relevant
policies for identifying and mitigating significant
potential climate-related issues.
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A4 Climate Change (Cont’d)

Physical risk (Cont’d)

The increasing severity of extreme weather events such
as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms, rainstorms
and typhoons, could lead to an increased risk of power
shortages, interrupt the supply chain and damage the
Group’s assets, disrupting the Group’s operations
and resulting in an adverse impact on the Group’s
financial performance as well as increasing the cost
of repairing or restoring damaged sites. These events
could also disrupt the work of employees and even
cause casualties. As a countermeasure, the Group has
formulated Business Continuity Plan for emergencies
so that loss can be reduced or avoided when extreme
weather events affect the Group’s operating sites and
to reduce the time required for the Group to resume
its business operations. The Group will identify these
risks and prioritize those that may have a significant
impact, and to take precautionary measures based
on the significance of impact of the risks. At the same
time, the Group will examine the possibility of a change
of business model to reduce or avoid these serious
effects on business operations.

Transition risk

Due to the increasing awareness of climate change,
the Stock Exchange has required listed companies
to enhance climate-related disclosures in their ESG
reports, which may result in increased compliance
costs. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline.
The Group will regularly monitor existing and emerging
climate-related trends, policies and regulations to
avoid reputational risks due to delayed response. In
addition, in order to reduce the Group’s environmental
impact and to comply with the requirements of the
Stock Exchange, the Group has set targets to reduce
energy consumption and GHG emissions. The Group
will continue to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s
actions to address climate change and enhance its
resilience against climate-related issues.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A. IRIFE(E)
A4 Climate Change (Cont’d) A4 FTIRZE (4E)
Transition risk (Cont’d) HARE ()

Nonetheless, the Group will continue to monitor related
developments as climate risks are directly related to
its operations and businesses, and thus the Group is
committed to addressing any such issues effectively if
they should arise.

B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment

Employment Practices

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human
resource policies stipulating rules on recruitment,
compensation, training, welfare, promotion guidelines
and dismissal. In order to safeguard benefits for the
employees, the Group abides by the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Labor contracts or
employment agreements are entered into between
the Group and the employees. Moreover, the Group
regularly monitors information related to employment
to prevent non-compliance with labor laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance or
breach of relevant laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure
consistency and compliance in the recruitment
and selection process, as well as to promote fair
opportunities to each candidate, the Group has
detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective
and carefully documented recruitment process will
ensure that any discrimination risks are minimized
and will provide the Group with the best possible
chance of identifying the right candidate. Regardless
of nationality, gender, age, race, religious belief
or disability, candidates with relevant professional
qualifications and working experience receive equal
consideration for employment.
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B1 Employment (Cont’d)

Employee Welfare

The Group provides its employees with mandatory
provident fund, business trip allowance, birthday
allowance, wedding allowance, body check, and
holiday allowance. Employees are entitled to national
holidays, company holidays, annual leave, funeral
leave, marital leave, maternity leave and sick leave as
well. In addition, the Group also adopted measures,
such as distributing gifts and benefits, as well as
holiday lengthening, to further enhance the benefits
system and its staff satisfaction.

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and
equitable manner through social media such as online
platforms and newspaper advertisements. Across
the Group’s diversified business portfolio, the Group
has a workforce of 23 employees as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 21 employees). Of which, 86.96% of
them are full-time employees and part-time employees
accounted for the remaining 13.04%. All employees are
employed in Hong Kong and are located in Hong Kong.

Breakdown of the Group’s employees by gender and
age group was summarized as follows:

By gender
RIERIE 5

Male
=l
Female

"

21
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B1 1EE (%)
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B1 Employment (Cont’d) B1 1EfE(#&)
Employee Turnover Rate ES A& E
During the Reporting Period, the employee RBEHHE  AEEMNEEREAERY
turnover rate of the Group is approximately 69.57% 7%69 57%(—Z-——%F : 97.56%) °
(2021:97.56%). The relatively low turnover rate was RIZEZ_FHEBHEERENREK
recorded in 2022 due to the change in business partner R, THRNE_E-_—FEHERE
in 2021, where we terminated a number of employment (=S EP RARIEZMDREEEY &
contracts, resulting in a higher turnover rate in 2021. B2 —FHREAERS -
The composition of employee turnover rate of the AEBRES RARAKIL DB a0
Group was summarized as follows: T

Employee turnover rate of

the Group (%): Categories
AEENEERKE(%) : Al
Total employee turnover 16 20
BEBERKE
Overall employee turnover rate 69.57% 97.56%
EREESRAE
Gender Male 50.00% 100.00%
B S
Female 71.43% 97.14%
2
Age group Below 30 0.00% 200.00%
Fhc R 30 A T
30 -50 80.00% 89.66%
30E508%
Above 50 133.33% 57.14%
505% A £
Geographical region Hong Kong 69.57% 97.56%
24" BB
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B2 Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to the
support of the Group’s precious asset, employees.
To create a safe working environment, the Group
has established safety policies on the prevention
and remediation of safety accidents, and detection
on potential safety hazards in workplace, measures
include regular safety inspections and launch of safety
promotion and safety training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during operation
processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suits, gloves,
masks and etc.

Employees are briefed and trained with safety
and environmental knowledge regularly to ensure
that each of them understands the risk of the task
they are involved in, has safety and environmental
consciousness and is familiar with safety and
environmental precaution measures. Emergency
and evacuation procedures for fire were established
for timely and orderly response to any major safety
accidents. The Group monitors the workplace safety
continuously, and performs a regular examination of
workplace safety hazards. To ensure the effectiveness
of fire emergency control, the Group appointed a third-
party institute to test its fire alarms and inspect its fire
safety equipment.

B. = (&)
B2 #EFEHZE

22 BRNEFEN TERBEHNE
BEEEEASBENEEELEE £
FEZ - ARVLTENIERE A&
BEHELEBRATERFAEBEL S
B UAEBATIESFBELZER
Lo REAEECHETZE2RERE
BEEEHERLZEE -

RRBERBERETNRERARZE 2R
b2 HERBTCRBEERIEES -
WRER - FERASZE -

EEVETHESLTE RIRBEANHME
NETZI - UERESHERSE 2
TERR @ WEAHEZE RIREEFHNU
MAEL 2 MIR? Tﬁﬂﬁ?e)ﬁﬂz"’ Kz
BEERRHEFEEREY - AEREF
EFHESEANERALTEEN - A&
EREEETEEMEE  REITIE
iﬁﬁﬁﬁziﬂ MLﬂmﬁmﬁﬁ o AR
HALESEENERE - $EIE
Hﬁgﬁﬁ_ﬁ$}%1ﬁi13)\ﬁ£¥#&ﬁﬁ\
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B2 Health and Safety (Cont’d) B2 fREFEEHZE (4E)

The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting
pressure on the Group and its employees during
the Reporting Period. As part of the COVID-19
countermeasures and to prevent the spread of the
virus, the Group has implemented stringent infection
preventive measures to protect its employees. The
Group closely monitored the health of its employees
every day by checking their body temperature,
providing sufficient rapid antigen test kit and alcohol-
based hand rub in the offices. The Group also required
its employees to consider using other methods such as
work-from-home arrangement or online video meeting
software for interviews or meetings. Employees are
advised to wear masks and avoid physical contact
(such as shaking hands, hugging) and crowded places
when they are required to meet people or work outside
of their local community.

During the Reporting Period, either occurrence of any
work-related fatalities in each of the past three years
including the Reporting Period, nor were there any lost
days due to work injury in 2022.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with health
and safety-related laws and regulations that would
have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (B3 % & K& 5 51) of Hong Kong.

RIREEIR - FCOVID-19R 15 B #
FE  AEBREREBHARIRERE
71 o fEBCOVID-195 FH) — 2D A
kB ILREEE  AEEEBESEN
PRSI REREES - AEEE
AEYEREEMREMR - BFER
EHER ERAZEANRERHER
RMERAIEELERRFR - A&
ENEREEZEEAERP TIERFEA
BERASHEEEEM A ETAE
A BHEH - - EREEEE LR
EEH ASEKIMNE TIER - EE L
OE - #egpeelm(niEF - #8)
MATAEABBEEZRE -

RmEHE RBE=F%F (8%
R HAR ) W AR B A (B T{EAE RS
MBGEN  RZE__FRERT
BIEATMI/ERE -

R¥mEHE - AEEY T HBEME
RERBERZEHEERIOERM
BRI ASBEELEARZENS
N ERBRETRREBENBER
2 REEREGRB -
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B3 Development and Training

Development and Training Management

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment
through development and training in the Group.
Equipping employees with the appropriate knowledge
not simply benefits its long-term development, but
the society as a whole. The Group regularly evaluates
the training objectives, training arrangements, training
content according to the business needs and make
changes when necessary. The results of the training
and the performance of each individual will also be
assessed regularly to ensure that all employees benefit
from the training.

The Group has devised training schedule to provide
different types of trainings to employees every year.
The categories include personnel, finance, medical
instruments, environmental management and fire
safety. Through education and training, the Group
can enable its employees to enhance their personal
qualities, strengthen their working skills and reinforce
the team performance. Moreover, employees can grow
with the Group by realizing their own values on the
basis of their personal interest and expertise.

B. #& (&)

B3 ZERIEZH

BREREIEE

AEEFRAREER AT HAKE
ZEZNL  BAESEENHNZ T
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Development and Training Management (Cont’d) BEREEE(F)

Besides, all employees are subject to regular B REBEMEAREFTESTEHE
performance and career development appraisal ENBERRETN  UBREEZL
in order to ensure the efficiency and quality of its {/Eiﬁz“?&u%éi EMBIAREES L FE
employees and to foster the stable development of BER - RZZTE__F ' 100% (=%
the Group. During 2022, 100%* (2021: 90.48%) of the Z—% :90.48%)WE B2 MF
employees have participated in trainings for an average EEZ 44,04/ 5 o IZ MR X E
of approximately 4.04 hours®. Their participation in EERE S - BEELNATEIESOE
different trainings by gender and employee category ST

are presented as follows:

Number of
Employees Trained (%)®

ZHlEERE (%)°

Category

Al

Gender %5l

- Male — 354 13.04% 5.26%
- Female — & 1% 86.96% 94.74%

Employee category &£ 3 3l

— Senior management — =K EIEE 17.39% 10.53%
— Middle management — & 4% &2 [ 8.70% 5.26%
— General employees —— & 1E S 73.91% 84.21%
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B3 Development and Training (Cont’d) B3 EERIEI(E
Development and Training Management (Cont’d) RERIZEE (&)

Average Training Hours’

F 33 3% 91 B B

Category 2022

il —s=-=

Gender £ 5l

- Male — 5% 1.50 1.00
- Female — %% 4.29 8.65

Employee category & 23 5l

— Senior management — e EIEE 3.00 0.67
— Middle management —H AR E IR [ 1.00 16.50
— General employees —— & 1E S 4.65 8.69

* The Group arrange orientation training to all new staff, * REBAMANE T D E
with decrease in turnover rate in 2022, the training il BE - _—_FHREEXT
hours for new staff decreased concurrently and lead to F - B THIE3IRFEEm T -
an overall decrease of average training hours. EH RIS RE o

Notes: Bt 5

4.  This percentage is calculated by dividing the total 4. ZEALNE T _FRB2INE
number of employees who took part in training during R EBRHEBRAZT _—_FEMN
2022 by the total number of employees at the end of EEBHBETESE -

2022.

5.  The average training hours per employee is calculated 5. BHREEMNTHBIRHDIE_-Z
by dividing the total number of training hours during T FANBIERERA-T
2022 by the total number of employees at the end of T FRMEEBREGTESTE -
2022.

6. The percentage of trained employees by category is 6. FHEANXZINEEMNGELEDE=ZF
calculated by dividing the number of employees in the Z_FAREEREEZ2MNEINIE
specified category who took part in training during 2022 ABBRAZZEZ ZFR2INEINE
by the total number of employees who took part in EERHHESTE -

training during 2022.

7.  The average training hours by category is calculated by 7. SEINTFHHFIFEHDE=-F
dividing the number of training hours for employees in ZZFAREERE S 15 IR 2
the specified category during 2022 by the number of BRAZZ-_—_FRFEHINEES
employees in the specified category at the end of 2022. ABGTESBE -
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B3

B4

Development and Training (Cont’d)
Development and Training Management (Cont’d)

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs
from the Group’s business development and the
employees’ competence. Vacancies of the Group’s
internal management positions will be filled up internally
by promoting the most qualified employees within the
Group. This offers the employees with the opportunities
for promotion and enhances the efficiency of the
Group.

Labour Standards

As the Group strictly adhered to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Group does not permit
forced labor or child labor under any circumstances. In
pursuant to the Group’s comprehensive set of human
resource policies, all new employees’ identification
card should be checked before they are recruited by
the Group to ensure their age meets requirements
of laws and regulations and prevent the Group from
accidentally hiring child labor. Any labor-related
issues will be handled with diligently and appropriate
actions will be taken seriously, such as termination of
employment contract.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance or breach of relevant
laws and regulations in child labor and forced labor.

B. & (&)
B3 #RERE (&)

BRRRIEINEE ()

AEEZRBREBERMENES R
REEH  HREROBTE@AU
EEERREALAEERNZAERE
REREREERNTFAEB - EA4LTEE
BEARERIERERANRE -

‘MUE%&

B4 TR

ARAEBEBEKETEBRERBIEH -
EEMAER T AL BT A 708 545
BREFET - REAEEZEMNA
NERBER - FiEFEEREALRE
B EAZEEFHE - UHERE
FREGHEBEERERNETE @ &
TAEEEIIEAET - T4 T
EEEBeEERTE  YEREFN
BETH (PR IEEEEL) -
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B5 Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners.
Stability, safety and effectiveness of product quality
is directly influenced by the selection of suppliers. To
effectively manage the supply chain, the Group has
developed a comprehensive system for assessing
new and existing suppliers. The Group has further
regulated the operational procedures of evaluation and
approval for main suppliers, and clarified the suppliers’
qualification, selection principle, quality evaluation
methods, evaluation standard, and approval procedure
for main suppliers. In addition, with the aim to promote
environmentally preferable products, the Group has
included suppliers’ environmental impact of production
into its supplier evaluation process’s criteria, and
such criteria are made aware to the Group’s suppliers
along the supply chain. The Group requires all of its
major suppliers to strictly comply with local laws and
regulations in all aspects so as to further eliminate
its supply chain’s environmental and social risks. In
addition, the Group requires its major suppliers to
regularly review their operational compliance relating to
areas such as human rights protection, occupational
health and safety and environmental protection so as to
identify any potential environmental and social-related
risks along the Group’s supply chain.

B, & (&)
B5 HEH#EE

HERRAKENRPERHAER
HoHERNBEERYEERE
ENREN REUREAENE - BB
MERHER  AEECEY—E2
R R A RHEFE RIRA R
Ao ARBEHTEHRERNTGER
EWRIFIEFETRS  BRAHER
HEBNEREZR  BERA - i
I8 FHERERERIEF o Lo
REBRRFRER  AKEKHERY
RENTZEMARBEEBNGEFN
FE URAKENHEBESROD
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B. SOCIAL (CONT’D)
B5 Supply Chain Management (Cont’d)
During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged

10 major suppliers, which 9 of them are located in the
Hong Kong and 1 of them is located in the PRC.

B, & (&)
B5 {RfEGEEEE (&)
REFEBE  AEEER10Z TS

B B8FR9RMREEMIBURE
o

Hong Kong &%

PRC A [
USA =

Total major suppliers 3 = {t fE i 48 2

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s businesses and product
distribution are relied on agents to introduce and
promote the products to hospitals for sale. Therefore,
the management of the agents is very crucial to
the Group. To avoid inefficiencies in agents and to
strengthen the sales performance, the Group has
tailor-made contracts for each agent in accordance
with its selling ability and respective target customers.
The contracts clarify the area in which the agents are
responsible for, as well as the hospitals they cooperate
with. The contracts also list out the compensation
they may get, and the sales amount that is targeted
to be achieved during the contract period. The Group
will evaluate agents from time to time following their
performance against the contract terms. The Group
believes that the management of agency contracts can
help to control the quality of agents and to implement
the business strategy efficiently.

9 8
1 1
0 1
10 10
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B6 Product Responsibility

The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. The Group’s
equipment is calibrated externally by professionals
and internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy.
Qualified personnel are assigned to each equipment
for the daily management and maintenance, to ensure
equipment in-use by the Group using is in good
condition. Damaged equipment will not be used until
they are fixed by the suppliers.

Listening to customers about their experiences with
products and services is the key to the Group’s
success. The Group constantly interacts with
customers by reviewing their enquiries and feedback
so that performance can be tracked regularly.
The Group is also dedicated to provide technical
supporting services to customers. Training is provided
to employees in offering comprehensive services to
customers.

Product and Service Quality

Being a responsible corporation, the Group strictly
monitors its service quality and any potential safety
issues in using its services.

The Group is committed to complying with local rules
and regulations on service and product safety, and
protecting consumers’ health on using its products.
During the Reporting Period, we recorded less than
5 product recall cases due to damaged goods and
recorded less than 5 refund cases due to customers’
personal reason. We take prompt actions to investigate
the issue and compensated customers regarding the
recall and refund products, hence, enhance customers’
satisfaction and loyalty.
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B6 Product Responsibility (Cont’d) B6 EmEF(#E)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group relies on a combination of intellectual
property laws, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures
and contractual provisions to protect its intellectual
property including know-how.

The Group strictly prohibits any purchasing of pirated
products or unauthorized usage of photos provided by
the third-party manufacturers. In addition, the Group
regularly verifies whether photos or pictures used by
the Group are copyrighted. Besides, the Group will not
adopt designs that are not authorized by the third-party
manufacturers and will conduct verification on whether
designs being used are authorized on a regular basis.
The Group attaches great importance to ensuring that
all propaganda or product designs of the Group do not
involve plagiarism, and requires all employees to have a
sense of the protection of intellectual property rights.

Advertising

The Group understands its customers’ rights and is
committed to providing accurate product and service
information for customers in connection with their
purchase or consumption decisions. The Group
requires careful review of advertising materials to
protect customers’ interest.
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B6 Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and
accurate information and product label to customers
and considers that it is an extended responsibility
of product safety management. The Group provides
clear instructions, including the danger, precautionary
measures and emergency treatment of products and
contact information.

Protection of Customer Information

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic
approach is implemented internally to ensure that only
designated employees have access to sensitive and
confidential information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the
Group has implemented a strict confidentiality system.
According to the system, the Group should enter into a
confidentiality agreement with the client who provides
the confidential information. Meanwhile, for ensuring
no unauthorized disclosure of confidential matters,
risk control department of the Group is responsible
for investigating the confidential information to
delimit secrecy scope and ascertain information
security. The Group also provides employees with
education regarding confidentiality, and specifies the
confidentiality obligations of employees in employee
manual.

As per our agreement with the cloud service provider,
it is prohibited to access the content of our data to
ensure the confidentiality of the data. In addition, data
is encrypted to protect the privacy of physicians and
patients.
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B6 Product Responsibility (Cont’d) B6 EmEF(#E)

Methods of Redress

Although the Group ensures the quality of its
products and services, at the same time, it requires
that products with quality issues should be returned
or compensated in accordance with terms of sales
contracts. Return, recall or compensation of products
is required to be offered to all customers who are
affected with consistent treatment and procedures.

The Group values customers’ feedback, as this is
the driving force for its continual improvement. Once
a complaint is received, the Group will take prompt
actions to investigate the issue and carry out remedial
action plans.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material issues on product health and safety,
advertising, labelling, privacy matters and methods of
redress, and no products and service-related material
written complaints were received.

B7 Anti-corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behavior and ethical conduct
among employees, the Group has adopted code of
ethics and anti-corruption regulations, so as to enable
employees’ conducts and behaviors to be monitored
throughout daily operations. The Group performs
annual self-evaluation to look at the implementation of
code of ethics and relevant regulations, the objective of
which is to ensure the thoroughness and consistency
in actual operations and management practices, with
a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of the
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships.
The Group has zero tolerance towards any form of
corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and
other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
its business operations and employs independent
auditors to carry out external audits on the Group,
aiming at preventing corruptive behaviors within the
Group through internal supervision and external audits.
Corporate governance training, which covers the
anti-corruption provisions outlined in the said policy,
knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as
necessary skills to handle ethical dilemmas at the
workplace, is provided to raise employees’ awareness.
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B7 Anti-corruption (Cont’d)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on
the Group, including but not limited to the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (F7 1E#E515f1) of Hong Kong.
During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding any forms of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering brought against the Group
or its employees. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group did not provide anti-corruption training to
directors and staff to protect the health and safety of
employees.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any
corruption or fraud activities. The Group promptly
conducts inspections and takes necessary measures
while protecting the identity of the whistle-blower to
prevent any conflict of interest or behaviors that will
bring harm to the Group and the stakeholders.
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B8 Community Investment B8 #ERE

With the market’s focus on corporate behavior, the
mere maximization of financial returns to shareholders
is no longer the management goal of business. The
Group stays proactive in fulfilling the responsibilities
as a corporate citizen of the community and
has developed relevant policy in promoting and
encouraging its employees to participate in social
welfare activities, in particular, focusing on improving
community health.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed
to extending the sustainability efforts from its own
operation to the wider society. The Group believes that
staff members are the core value makers in the society.
The Group will continue to pool the strengths and
commit itself in increasing community participation,
balance of interests of stakeholders and strives to build
a corporate-community relationship that promotes
harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and
documented a specific community policy, social care
is deep-rooted in the Group’s corporate culture.
Employees are encouraged to participate in various
charitable events and community service.

During the Reporting Period, in view of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group did not arrange or participate in
volunteer services to protect the health and safety of
employees.
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INDEX TABLE E

Part B: Mandatory disclosure requirements

BH 72 : MHMERE

Mandatory disclosure items Disclosure chapter
BEREER HEEMH
Governance Structure Statement from Board
ERRE EE GG
Reporting Principles Reporting Principles
b ¥R FR A BeE 7 R Al

Reporting Boundary Reporting Boundary
B 3R 57 PR BEE 3R 57 PR

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

CHa : [ TETHEBRE R

Subject Areas, Aspects, Disclosure chapter
General Disclosures and KPIs WEZEH
FTEHE  EEH - —REERBEEREER

A. Environmental

ARIR

A1. Emissions

A1 B

General disclosure Al Emission Control
—RRIREEA BER 12

KPI A1.1 Emissions

FASR AR B IEAT PR

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
B A IR IRA.2 AEREB(DAZERE DR
KPI' A1.3 Waste Management

B A IR EA.3 REEYE R

KPI A1.4 Waste Management

B3R A IR 1RA .4 REEYE R

KPI A1.5 Maintain Sustainability

B A I RA1.5 RRFAIREER

KPI A1.6 Waste Management

B A IR EA.6 REEYE R
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Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

CHa : [ FETHMBE R

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

ITEER  BH —REBERBREARER

A2. Use of Resources
A2. 5 REA

General disclosure A2
— B FTEA2

KPI A2.1

AR AR RIE1RA2.1

KPI A2.2
RS A M IEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3
BB AR RA2.3
KPI A2.4

FASAE M IEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
BAREERA2.5

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
A RIERRAER

General disclosure A3
— M #FEAS

KPI A3.1

BSR4 IE1ZEAS. 1

A4. Climate Change
A4 RIRE 1L

General disclosure A4
— R HFEAL

KPI A4.1
B AR B IEIRAL. 1

Disclosure chapter
WEEE

Use of Resources

BIRE M

Energy Consumption

BEIRH#E

Water Consumption

KB FE

Energy Consumption

BEIRHAE

Water Consumption

KB FE

Use of Packaging Materials

BEMEHER

Environmental Protection
IRIBIRE

Environmental Protection & Indoor Air Quality
BRREREREANTZREE

Climate Change
SRS

Climate Change
RARE L,
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Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

CHa : [ FETHMBE R

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER - -BH —REERBREERER

B. Social
B.#t &

B1. Employment
B1.{E{&

General disclosure B1
— R FR B

KPI B1.1

FA AR B 1EBT .1
KPI B1.2

RS 4E B 1EB1.2
B2. Health and Safety
B2.ZERZZE
General disclosure B2
— M # FEB2

KPI B2.1

FAB AR A IE1EB2.1

KPI B2.2
SRR 1R B2.2

KPI B2.3
BABE ARG 1RB2.3

B3. Development and Training
B3.% & R EHI

General disclosure B3
— M # B3

KPI B3.1

RS AR A IE1EB3.1

KPI B3.2
FAS A M IE1RBS3.2

Disclosure chapter

BEEH

Employment Practices

R EEH

Employee Welfare
(SRR

Employee Turnover Rate

BERAEX

Health and Safety
BEREEREZR

Health and Safety
fERR M2 &

Health and Safety
fREkis

Health and Safety
fEER M2 &

Development and Training Management
TR M IE)IE IR

Development and Training Management
TR M e

Development and Training Management
ERNIIFIER
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Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

CHa : [ FETHMBE R

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

ITEER  BH —REBERBREARER

B4. Labour Standards
B4.% T %8|

General disclosure B4
—MIEEB4

KPI B4 .1

RAB AR AIE1EBA A

KPI B4.2
RS A M IE1RB4.2

B5. Supply Chain Management
B5.ftERHEE

General disclosure B5
— MR EBS

KPI B5.1

RAS AR B 1ZEB5 .1

KPI B5.2
FAS AR M FE1RB5.2

KPI B5.3
A 52 45 8 1EB5.3

KPI B5.4
ARG 1RB5.4

Disclosure chapter

BEEH

Labour Standards
8 TR

Labour Standards
4 T8

Labour Standards
BT

Supply Chain Management
HEEEE

Supply Chain Management
HEBEER

Supply Chain Management
HrEsEER

Agency Contracts Management
REENER

Supply Chain Management
HEREER
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Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

CHa : [ FETHMBE R

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER - -BH —REERBREERER

B6. Product Responsibility
B6.EmE

General disclosure B6
— R IEEB6

KPI B6.1

A 52 AR A IE1EB6.1

KPI B6.2
RS A M IE15B6.2

KPI B6.3
BB AR5 15B6.3
KPI B6.4

M AE 1515864

KPI B6.5
BB AR NI 1RB6.5

B7. Anti-corruption
B7.RES

General disclosure B7
— B EBT

KPI B7.1

8§ 48 B 1ZEBT .1
KPI B7.2

B A MIEEBT.2

KPI B7.3
BB AR 1RBT .3

B8. Community Investment

B8.HERE

General disclosure B8
— B # =EBS

KPI B8.1

A iR 4 s 12881

KPI B8.2
RS A M IE15B8.2

Disclosure chapter

BEEH

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Methods of Redress

R A

Product and Service Quality
EmkiRFEEE

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
{RBE AN =

Methods of Redress

R E

Protection of Customer Information

EFERHMRIE

Anti-corruption
k&5
Anti-corruption
k&R

Whistleblowing Mechanism

£ i 1

Anti-corruption
k&R

Community Investment

HEKRE

Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment

HEKRE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of
healthcare products and services. In accordance with Schedule
5 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and
analysis of these activities including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing by the Group and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 13
and notes 35 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements of
this report, which form part of this directors’ report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting
Period as well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance under review and the material factors underlying
its financial performance and financial position are provided in
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 of
the annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 110 to 112.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 199 to 200.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to HK$Nil (2021: HK$NIil).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 115 to 116
and note 28 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Chuang (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Dr. Liu Ming

Mr. Leung Man Fai

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Chuang and Ms. Huo Chunyu will retire as

directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and GEM Listing
Rules.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/ she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties
of his/ her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters
in respect of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those set out in note 32 to the financial statements and
under heading “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in this report,
none of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted
by the Company on 14 September 2011 is for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of
the Group and is valid for ten years from its adoption until 13
September 2021.

The movement of share options under the share option scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2022 was as below:

B

RZF——FNAATHEA - KRFRABIAE
AE((RERESS])  T2EN/RAKEE
ErAERBERMHNER B RMETFAA
M BEE_T_—FAA+=ARL-

RBE_ZT__F+_A=+—HILFE &K
NEIERERT IR N Z R EEE T

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECEICECR=T-ALERZBRERB(RRASHANEAEERERE)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise as at asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price  (Nofg) exercise period of  Exercisable portion of the 202 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2022

persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS]  the Share Options  Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Notg) (Note) (Note)

e R-g=-% ut bt

fikE BhEL tA=t-R  ERE/ tZA=t-R

ke () BERBRR AR i | Bfif BENLE BAY  HAGR

ABEAL  RAAH GBr)  (Bn) RS BREBREAGRER (Hit) (W) () L) (&) ()

Others 16/9/2015 0.45 9.00  For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the Company 8,302,000 NIL NIL NIL NL 3302000
1) S 3 for less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the 4 £ i k

AATHA Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

REBREBANARATRG 1~ R IARRRAATAR EE

ik HEENINFRN -

1st Period 1st Options

EE F-hERE

2nd Period 2nd Options (together with any 1st Options

3 wihich have not been exercised during the
1st Period)

R hRBE (RS
BRHAR RS -RHE)

3rd Period 3rd Options (together with any 1st and 2nd
F=(AHR Qptions which have not been exercised

during the 1st Period and 2nd Perio)
F=EREGEERNE-E

BRRE-ERREAGEL R

F-hRE-hERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

BIRRE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECEICECR=t-ALERZEREZB(RRASHANEAERRERD)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note] ~exercise period of  Exercisable portion of the 202 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2022
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS] ~ the Share Options  Share Options granted (Note) (Note) Note) (Note) (Nots) (Note)
i H-%=-% Sk
fikE BREZ t2Azt-0 ERE/ tZA=t-R
ke () BEBERR AR 58 Bfif EENAE BN HAAE
4BEA:  RAAE (Br)  (Bn) fRHE BRnRREUGETR (W) i) (hit) (W) (&) (i)
4ih Period 4ih Options (together with any 1st, 2nd
EM(EHE and 3rd Options which have not been
exercised during the 15t Period, 2nd
Period and 3rd Period)
FHhEREGEENE SR £-F
i &% 1IHﬁF1ﬁMEZEEJ
DRESO VR U
5th Period 5th Options (together with any 1, 2nd, 3rd
ET{AHE and 4th Options which have not been
exercised during the 15t Period, 2nd
Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)
FROBRE(EANE-EHE
#_[E45  2=E8ER
EREEREATE 2 RS
#20 2=hREMHERE)
For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company
on the relevant date of grant (as the case may bel:
REBRLEBNAZRTRR T BRI AR TR (HE
NHEHESHEN
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

BrE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECR-CEToACT-RLERZRRERD(NRALHANEALRERLR)

Adjusted Outstanding Qutstanding
exercise as at asat
Exercise ~price Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible pice  (Note)  exercise period of  Exercisable portion of the 202 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2022
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS] ~the Share Options  Share Options granted (Notg) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Note)
e Ho3-% St
fikE BREz tA=t-R  ERE/ tZRZ1-A
ikE () BERBRR R o B CENAE Bk HAGE
4EEAL  RERE (Bn)  (An) AfkHE BREBREZNGRES (&) () () i) (hst) ()
16 March 201710 Upto 20% (‘Options 1)
15Marcn 2018 EH00%([ERE])
(ooth days inclusive)
(the *Period 1)
I s A
“5-/\E=A 1A
(AfiBERA)
(4851 ])
16 March 2018 o Upto 20% (‘Options 2°) (together with any
15 March 2019 Options 1 which have
(ooth days inclusive) ot been exercised during the Period 1)
(te *Perod 2) F50%([ERiE))
Z3-N\EZATAAE  (ERRERIRKAR
E-N\FZATRR  ZfEMERE)
(REERRR)
(T8#2))
16 March 2019 to Upto 20% (‘Options &) {together with any
16 March 2020 Options 1 and 2which have not been
(ooth days inclusive] ~ exercised during the Periods 1 and 2)
e ‘Perod 3"  &%20%( EfRiE3)
ZENESATARE  (BRREEIROER
CECRECATRR I /AmERERY)
(BERRRA)
(TEEs))
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Adjusted
exercise
price
(Note)
(HKS)
e
ke BhkEz
ke () BRRERR
(Bm)  (%n) TAE49M

Exercise
price
(HKS)

Vesting schedule and
exercise period of
the Share Options

Eligible

persons  Date of grant

sgpAt  RERH

Exercisable portion of the
Share Options granted

ERERREURRS

BrE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECECCECR=T-ALERZBRERB(NRASHANEAERRERE)
Outstanding Outstanding

as at asat

31 December 31 December
2021 2022

(Note) (Note)
R=g=-f Hgzcf
+ZR=t-A tZA=t-R
HATE AT
(i) (&)

Granted/
vested
(Notg)

Exercised Reclassified
(Note) (Note)

Lapsed
(Note)

28t/
L
(Rii)

BEFAR
(i)

GRS
(i)

16 March 2020 o
15 March 2021 (both
days inclusive) (the
“Period 4')

EIRESATARE
ZE-EZR 1A
(RAEERMA)
(TER4))

16 March 2021 1o
1 September 2025
(ooth days inclusive)
i Sy 2yt R Y
ZECRENATRR
(REARRA)

Others 9/9/2016
oAt ZEnE
AANA

0291 582

Upto 20% (‘Options 4') {together with any
Options 1, 2 and & which have not begn
exercised during the Periods 1, 2 and 3)

K520%( BkiE)
(BRRER1 - 2R
SATIEL Ef
Bk 2R3)

Upto 20% (together with any Options 1, 2,
3 and 4 which have not been exercised
during the Periods 1, 2, 3 and 4)

5500 ERRER1 - 2 SRemATTEL
EERE -2+ 3R4)

For Grantses other than new employees who have joined the Company
for less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the
Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

KEBREBANAZR AR 1= BF A A AR AR (R
k) HEENINFRN -

1st Period
F—{AH

2nd Period
i

1st Options
E-hERE

2nd Options (together with 1st Options which

have not been exercised during the 1st
Period)

FhERE(RR
F-EHRRAAE
2 fEME-hERE)

NIL
E

3,905,200 NIL

I

NIL
g

NIL 3,905,200
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

exercise period of
the Share Options

Exercisable portion of the
Share Options granted

ERERREURES

BirE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BE-RCIETCACT-RLERCRRRAD(RROHANERRRERYER)

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2021

(Note)
N8>
tZR=+-A
BAAE
(&)

Granted/
vested
(Notg)

BEt/
|
(RisH)

Exercised Reclassified

(Note)

Bk
(i)

(Note)

BEFAE
(i)

Lapsed
(Note)

GRS
(i)

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2022

(Note)
H=gzf
t=A=t-A
HATE
()

Adjusted
exercise
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and
Eligible price  (Notg)
persons  Date of grant (HKS)  (HKS)
5]
ke BhkEz
ke () BERBRR
AE#AL  RERH (Bn)  (Br) WAfFHE
3rd Period
B
4ih Period
EIELT
5ih Period
EREE

3rd Options (together with any 1st and 2nd
Options which have not been exercised
during the 1st Period and 2nd Period)

E=hBRE(ERRE-A8ERE_E
BRRAMRZENE-HRE-H
EhE)

4ih Options (together with any 1st, 2nd
and 3rd Options which have not been
exercised during the 1t Period,
2nd Period and 3rd Period)
FRRBRE(ERRE -85 226

BRRE=RERRARRE AR )

F-hRE=NERE)

5th Options (together with any 1st, 2nd, 3rd
and 4th Options which have not been
exercised during the 1st Period, 2nd
Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)

ERRBRE(ERRNE-EDR
F[HR  Z-AERRERE
SRRAARZENE-H F2f
ERDVEIE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) BB (&)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECECCECR=T-ALERZBRERB(NRASHANEAERRERE)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise as at asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 3 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of  Exercisable portion of the 202 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2022
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ the Share Options  Share Options granted (Not) (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Notg) (Note)
e imt ut bt 3
fikE BhEL tB=t-  BRE/ tZA=t-R
ke () BERBRR BAAE i | Bfif BENIE BN HAGE
ABEAL  RAAH (1) (Bn) AfFHE ERLBEREAGRER (&) (&) () (Wit) (&) (&)
For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company
on the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):
Gl T N gl e Al
TEHEEREN
9 March 2018 to Upto 20% (‘Options I')
8 March 2019 B5o0m([BhE)
(ooth days inclusive)
(the ‘I Period)
ZE-)\EZANAE
ZE-NEZANE
(RAEERRMA)
(TE81)
9 March 2019 o Upto 20% (‘Options II) together with any
8 March 2020 Options | which have not been exercised
(ooth days inclusive) ~ during the | Period)
fhe “IPeriog’)  S520%([ERiEN)
I-NEZANRE  (ERRBRIEAGE FHERE)
ZF2EEAA
(REARRA)
(TE1)
9 March 2020 to Up o 20% (‘Options II") (together with any
8 March 2021 Options | and Il which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) ~ exercised during the | and Il Periods)
(te ‘Il Period) 0%/ ERkAEIN) (ERA BRI Rl
CECRECANRE  fifcmERER)
“B-EZANA
(pAE&RRMA)
([ 580.)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

BirE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2022
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECECCECR=T-ALERZBRERB(NRASHANEAERRERE)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise as at asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price  (Nofg) exercise period of  Exercisable portion of the 202 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2022
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ the Share Options  Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Not) (Notg) (Note)
e R=g=-f H=gzf
kR BhE tZRzt-8  ERE/ tZR=1-A
ke () BERBRR BAAE 78 B EENAE Bkk  HAGE
AE#AL  RERH (Bm)  (%n) TAE4M BREBREZATEDH (&) (&) () (&) (&) ()
9 March 2021 to Upto 20% (‘Options IV') (together with any
8 March 2022 Options |, Il and l which have not been
(both days inclusive) ~ exercised during the I, Il and 11l Periods)
(e IV Petod)  &%20%([EREN])ERRERE - Ik
ZIT-ESANRE  NEAOEZEMERRE  IRN)
ZZC2EZANA
(RAE&RRMA)
()
9 March 2022 to Up to 20% (together with any Options | Il
8 September 2025 (ITand IV which have not been exercised
(ooth days inclusive) ~ during the |, 1|, Il and IV Periods)
ZEIIESAABE  RH%(ERNERE 1 NRNEASEL
ZECRENANR EMEREIRN)
(REARFR)
Note: By virtue of a share consolidation of the Company whereby every 20 [zt : AR AR RIETRD A OF © AR R IRAHR &8

of then existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the

share capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidated

share of HK$0.20 each. The share consolidation took effect on 16

May 2019. The number of shares and exercise price under the share

option scheme were adjusted accordingly.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange:

==

RESTHABRREG RIEE
R BERAR

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 " THEEEAK
RERBITBRABRAAT R EREEE(EX
REBENETIEZLERPEERN([EBEHE R
HREEB) ) EBXVED) 2 I fn - MRERG REEE
o BRERWEIERE()VBREEELPEENE
XVEBE7RSHEBAME AR R KRBT 2
FAR(BREEEREEFRBEEFEEIEX
WEIESBIEHREA 2T SOAR) & (i) BRIFEE
HRHEIEHIEI52F AR AZIGA BBz
EEFBAR - HRIEGEM MR AIFES.462
567K EHETETESFRRII IR TAME R
DRI MR Z SRR

Long Positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RZX A GRGRIEEK G2 E2%
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
Name of Directors/ shares and the issued
chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
R R EERT
HBRRH 2 N
EZ /BRTHASHSR e BRAT BO
Wang Chuang Beneficial Owner 550,520,000 19.29%
TH BREAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of B EXFIHBEEN  R_ZT - _F+ = A

the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

=+t—HB #BEEEIAQAETRAER
AR REABEZE(EEREFRBERIE
XVED) 2 Bt ~ MERAAR {5 S B =5 A SR
ERA()VREZSF R EGROIEXVEETR8S
WEAMGR DA KB ERmdOXE (BIER
SIRBEZF KB GOIB B IR E ER1E
BEZRBIAR)  H(NVREES LB ED
F 3521 BE AZIGFT M B LM 2 R SOAE
(i) B EGEM T iR RIS 5.46 E5.67IRBEME
BETEFRGZATERANERRA KB
B PORE ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

FTERFEREEMATRERDKRIEE
@

Long positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RZARXAGRGRIEERE Z#E
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage
shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
RBRGRAEE HERTRE
BREHE BB L) R 172 R B R
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 582,547,765 20.41%
PBERERDA (1) BREAA
Arab Osman Mohammed (Note 1) Others 583,422,765 20.44%
SER (M) Hth
Wong Kwok Keung (Note 1) Others 588,422,765 20.44%
ECEA(ER) Ht
Li Ren (Note 2) Held by controlled corporation 582,547,765 20.41%
Zg)(fizk2) BXEEERA
Beneficial owner 21,380,000 0.75%
BREAA
China Orient Asset Management Held by controlled corporation
Co., Ltd (Note 3) 3 157,744,659 5.57%
PERHAEERRNARAA BXEEERA
(Ft5E3)
China QOrient Alternative Investment Held by controlled corporation 157,744,659 5.57%
Fund (Note 3) (ff{73) BXEEERA
Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation
Consulting Limited Liability Partnership* (Note 4) 3 262,400,000 9.19%
BNmRACRERRACRER BXEEERA
(ER&%)(Ki:t4)
Lei Changjuan (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 262,400,000 9.19%
=Y BXEEERA
Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
Consulting Services Limited Liability Partnership*
(Note 5)
EMTRREECEEEAARE BXEEERE
AREE(BRA%) (Ms)
Kong Yu Dong (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
HER(ES) BXEEERA
Wang Xiaogang Beneficial owner 149,450,000 5.24%
FEH BREAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to
() 40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”)
and 20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited, of which Nat-Ace Wood
Industry is ultimately and wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ren (“Mr. Li”) and
Honour Top Holdings Limited is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dai
Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (ii) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover, All Favour has
been the beneficial owner of 582,547,765 Shares. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Dai, Mr. Li and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be
interested in 582,547,765 Shares in which All Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 share
options by the Company under the Scheme adopted by the
Company on 14 September 2011 entitling him to subscribe for
17,500,000 Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per Share,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme of the Company.
The number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise of the said
share options and the exercise price per Share were adjusted to
875,000 Shares and HK$9.00 per Share with effect from 16 May
2019 as a result of the share consolidation of the Company, details
of which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 May 2019. Assuming the share options granted to Mr. Dai has
been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate of 875,000
Shares as beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai, together
with his deemed interests in All Favour, was deemed to be interested
in an aggregate of 583,422,765 Shares, representing approximately
20.44% of the issued share capital of the Company. All Favour has
pledged its interests in 157,744,659 Shares in favour of Optimus.

On 31 March 2022, a bankruptcy order was made against Mr. Dai.
Subsequently, Messrs. Arab Osman Mohammed and Mr. Wong
Kwok Keung were appointed as joint and several trustees (the
“Trustees”) of the property of Mr. Dai at the general meeting of
creditors held on 6 May 2022. Accordingly, the property of Mr. Dai,
including his shareholdings, shall vest in the Trustees pursuant to
section 58(2) of the Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap. 6).

FTERRREMATRAREGREE
Wtz e (4])
e (&)

REARARGREHEK G 2 #a ()

Hi

1. Z2EBZERABRAFR([2EB])AH(MBERAES
NAE([HomARE])EZ=HEHB40% KHonour
Top Holdings Limited Bz #H520% * HH
BAREBRFTAEE([FTEERREZERE -
if Honour Top Holdings Limited i & £ & %
E(TBEENRKREZERR  RINBELER
B40% ° AN+ 218 A582,547, 7658 k(5 2
BERBEAA o BRIBEHFHRIAEGKG - #EE -
?5‘5i&%%@ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁviﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁ
582,547,765 R D A R -

RZZE—RAFNA+A - BEEREAQAIR
BRZZE——FNLA+THARANGFTEET
17,500,0001p fE ik # « B T E R Al 8 %
0. 45/%7zzmﬂg;auE%17,5oo,ooo%Wﬁ '
WEEBTA ARG B 2GR RIGEH - AATA
BHeEHS F*%ﬁuﬂfb_ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬂq%H%%ém
2RO EE RBRITEE S BIFAE /875,000
B RF/R.00E T AT —ALFHA
TRBRER  FEFEREXNTAGASR
—T-NAFHRATHRBZRAE - BEETEL
EZEREEBRETE  BLEREAERE
B AEE A 875,000 1D o 1R FH K& H
BiEf - EREEEEREBHA 2% - &
SRR AR A $£583,422, 765 M R A
B GARBIEBHITRAL20.44% - 21F
B & EMN157,744,659 8 I {n R REZS K H T
Optimus °

RZTZZZF=RA=+—H BEEEEEE
RoHB RZTE-__FRASNBRITZERE
A%%v%%ﬁﬁi&aﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
EEVEZHEBRERNZFEA(ZETEALD -
It ARIRFE N E W E KB E58(2) 15 '%ﬁiz
ME(REELRE)ASBRITA -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:(Cont’d)

2. Mr. Li personally owns 21,380,000 Shares. Mr. Li is therefore
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 603,927,765 Shares,
representing, approximately 21.16% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. Based on the disclosure of interests form both filed on 14 December
2020 by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime
Management Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 157,744,659
Shares. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is wholly
owned by China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”). COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader
Assets Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin
Development (Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (i) 50% by Dong
Yin which is wholly owned by COAMC.

By virtue of the SFO, COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and
COAMC are deemed to be interested in 157,744,659 Shares held by
Optimus as security interest.

4. Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Consulting Limited
Liability Partnership* (“Yaoguang”) is a limited liability partnership
established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Lei Changjuan as
the general partner and the shares were held by Yao Guang (Hong
Kong) Enterprise Limited as nominee for Yaoguang. Accordingly,
each of Yaoguang and Ms. Lei Changjuan is deemed to be
interested in 262,400,000 Shares.

3.

TR R A £ AR R ADES
R 2 Eas ()
#7E ()

REARARGREHEK G 2 #z ()

fisE « (&)

B ABEB21,380,000/% A% » &t - =
g AW AR AR A $£603,927, 765X XD 1 A
o (AARRIBEETIRAL21.16% °

REFERHIBEEERNDERAF([HEH
HHEEEM|) KChina Orient Alternative
Investment Fund ( [ COAIF | ) Ff g & B
HAE T -_TF+_A+HNBZEZRE
L Optimus Prime Management Ltd.
(I Optimus 1) M 157,744,659 & ix 1n + # &
HIF#EZ o Optimus HCOAIFZEH AR ©
COAFHFREFRHEEER (BB ERERA
RA([FBRRAFEEEERKE)2EHE - FH
RABEEEBEMR : ()Wise Leader Assets
Ltd.([Wise Leader|)#EH50% %z + MWise
LeaderdH R IRER (ER)BRAB([RIR]) 2
BHA  R()VRBHABL50%HEz + 5 R B+
EEFEEER2EHESR -

BIEES R HEKED - COAIF - FERHEE
BEIEEE - Wise Leader * REERFRHR &
EEBERERAROptimus AEHERSERES
M157,744,659MR MO PR

ENTRACEEELHNCRLE(ERER)
(TBED)BRFPBEKIZEREBRLE I
BEBRZT(ERLBERAN)ERE  BRH
BN (BB CEERAAI(EAREHREAN)
BE At BAREEBZTSEHEEAR

262,400,000 B 17 R B s o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:(Cont’d)

o8 Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Consulting Services
Limited Liability Partnership* (“Minxing”) is a limited liability
partnership established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Kong
Yudong as the general partner and the shares were held by
Zhong Min Starry (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee for Minxing.
Accordingly, each of Minxing and Ms. Kong Yudong is deemed to be
interested in 160,600,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
are not aware that there is any other party (other than the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company (i) which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or chief executive of the Company or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

ES S SIUPNEN SR L
Wtz e (4])

#E (&)

REARARGREHEK G 2 #a ()

MisE - (&)

5. BMNTHREEZCEEEZNRBAEBLE"
(EREE)(TREDARFPEKRKIZERE
Bh¥ VHEILETRELZLT(ERBEBERBAN)E
B ROBTPREZ(BEB)ERAREARE
MRBEBANES At RERATEZLEEAR
18 A1 160,600,000 B D P A e o

BREXHBEEEN R_ZTE-_—_F+=A
=+—H EFHTABENEMAL(EER
ARARRESITBABBRINRARARKGD - 1HE
R REEZER  HEIEEIEEBNRERES
MERE GBI EXVERE2 R 3D B 2 & X AR AR
AR RFTIRE 2 EmIORE dz(n)m?fflujff
MHAE &0 33615 AL Azt Z e itk 2
EmIORR °

EEWBRONERER ZER

BRARE [EERERTERASNEN KIEH

Pefn 2 iEsm FORR | — BRI EE SN - RIEH
BEMER  TANEFHAARBARSTHRAR

SRERTBZEBIRMISHE F X EERA
BBWE AR BB Sk ERERE M & s 2 (T

Mo WEFIREITEM LAERN  ARFHE
MIB AR INER AL - FEFAEBIK

BARQ 7&&1&@&12&@&@ RERE A
E ez SR 7 a8
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as set out in note 32 to the financial statements and
elsewhere in this report, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. For those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has disclosed such connected transactions
in accordance with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in this section, other
related party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements are not considered as connected
transactions, or are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers represented
approximately 7% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
approximately 71% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 18 to 43 The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s business is subject to the relevant environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not subject to any major environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties, administrative or disciplinary actions.
For more information in the environmental policies of the Group,
please refer to the ESG Report included in this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong in all material respects.

The Company has adopted the CG Code. During the Reporting
Period, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code in relation to
separation of the role of chairman and chief executive officer. For
further information in respect of the corporate governance of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with them. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material dispute between the Group and its
customers, suppliers and employees, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results
with shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

1. the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

4.  the Group’s liquidity position;

5.  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Company; and

6. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Man Fai
(the chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. Huo Chunyu and Dr. Liu
Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

McM (HK) CPA Limited will retire, and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of McM (HK)
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
110 to 198, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters we identified are:

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of
trade and other receivables

Refer to notes 19 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statement.

The Group had trade and other receivables with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$71,000 and HK$263,113,000
respectively and provision for allowance for expected credit losses
of other receivables approximately HK$7,276,000.

In general, the trade and other receivables credit terms granted
by the Group to the customers ranged between 60-180 days.
Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for allowance for expected credit losses based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
and other receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of realisation of
outstanding balances, and on-going trading relationships with
the relevant customers. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit
losses for the allowance for expected credit losses assessment.

We focused on this area due to the allowance for expected
credit losses assessment of trade and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

Qur procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2022 included:

- Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2022 to the
underlying financial records and post year-end settlements
to bank receipts;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade and other receivables past due as at year
end and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

- Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit losses
provision methodology, examining the key data inputs on a
sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR 2GRy

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

108

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

ERERERTENETETBESD - BN
ERTERHALE  RETEXREREEE - 1M

N

AR M EER KR ERM BB G AW
BREAFEEAERRAVER - Rt &
HITEAEFAREELRR  ARER
FRRMEENERFER  EREMERD
it - ARHGFAIBE S R BR - E - &
BER  EBRRL - EBRARZES 2
£ HEREEFERR A M B E A
AR PRt e [ B 7 O R B B3R R BE AR T 2K
MEAHERRAER -

TR EEFT MO ARG - AR RE
BENETIEF  BENYEY BHEE
NEEHINERERRER °

HEARRRESAHEASHBERNIBE K
RAEREFHARTMMER B ENSIEN

HEERAKBELCLZGTERNIREEE
g - RIBPAERNERE  BER
EEEESHEABAARNEANET
o KMARERY BERENFKER
EERNELEARE - MRBMARB/FE
BERTHEEN  AIE L EEZBENRE T
RFEAEIEFAVBHRRPOEBE
EoREAMMBETRE - AIRFIEER
BB R o FAPTE0 45 i 2 2 0 1 BRAD
= H LS REEE - A KRRFE
ARIFERATEEN BEEBETREFELYE -

HEFAVMBRR(BEREERN)WERE
UG - EEBNMAT - A REGEE M BR
REETERRBBIZMER -

7. EEERNBERAXKIDNUBKESR
EERFR  BEENENEE UEHES
MHBRERER - HABAKERTHN
A EEMT - RAIESBETER A
EEE -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McM (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
24/F, Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

10 April 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EmREMEEWAK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET T

Continuing operations BREREER
Revenue Wz 6 231,612 282,897
Cost of sales SHE KA (193,989) (215,170)
Gross profit E A 37,623 67,727
Other income, gain and loss HMA - s Rk EsE 6 4,518 6,082
Selling and distribution expenses HE N D HEAX (3,604) (4,392)
Administrative and other expenses TR R HAMR (22,213) (43,054)
Recognition of expected credit loss on #ERE b E R FIBTEHEE

other receivables E1E (7,276) (2,688)
Finance costs B%E A 9 (781) (736)
Reversal of provision for expected Hig & maEE

credit loss due to subsequent TR EEEERG

settlement - 41,353
Profit before tax from continuing BEREER KRB A

operations o Al 10 8,267 64,292
Income tax expenses Frie i 13 (3,712) (12,465)
Profit for the year from continuing XA TEAEAEGTELSE

operations attributable to owners ¥ 2 K FEEREF

of the Company 4,555 51,827
Discontinued operations BRI EK
Loss for the year attributable to AATEEAEBEXREERSE

owners of the Company 8 - (38,479)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EmREMEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET T
Other comprehensive loss after tax: R ZHEMEHEEIE :
Items that may be reclassified HERREER HHE B2
subsequently to profit or loss: IHH :
Exchange loss on translation of THEFINETS B SRR Z
financial statements of foreign bE 5 B 18
operations (12,367) (1,139)
Release of translation reserves upon  H & [t & A 7B R
disposal of subsidiaries ME 5 - 39,231
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for — JRRSER L ETE 72 NEE
the year arising from continued Hi2mE(BER) WA
operations (12,367) 38,092
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EmREMEEWAK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E_—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FHExT T
Total comprehensive (loss)/income &ATEEAELEERT
for the year attributable to owners £ (E5#8) It A
of the Company (7,812) 51,440
Total comprehensive (loss)/income JRERUT&IEZ A& D T
for the year attributable to BEAELFERZE
the owners of the Company M(EE) WA
arise from:
— Continuing operations — AR ET (7,812) 50,688
— Discontinued operations —ERIEREER - 752
(7,812) 51,440
Earnings per share from continuing BERAQATEEAZ
operations attributable to owner BESEERZEBR
of the Company: 2R
Basic (HK$) BEAR(ET) 15 0.002 0.020
Diluted (HK$) - AC T 15 0.002 0.020
Loss per share from discontinued SBEBREAQATEEAZ
operations attributable ERIEEEEE
to owner of the company: BREE :
Basic (HK$) AER(ETT) 15 - (0.010)
Diluted (HK$) #E(BT) 15 - (0.010)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRBRR

/\\/T\

As at 31 December 2022 R —_E - —_F+_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-—Z=-Z— KT —%
+-—A=+-8B +ZA=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FERT FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 16 3,173 753
Right-of-use assets {FE RS E 17(a) 23,645 -
26,818 753
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 286 384
Trade receivables =) e 19(a) 71 208
Deposits, prepayments and other e - FBAREREAM
receivables FEUGRIE 19(b) 246,887 247,867
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTHE G 20 1,849 9,929
249,093 258,388
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B o ENMNIE 21 53 89
Accrued charges and other payables fEtE R R EH M EZIE 22 13,472 10,540
Contract liabilities aHAaE 23 60,743 76,600
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 9,916 5,870
Shareholder’s loans REEK 24 48,414 29,954
Current tax liabilities EHAFIEAE 25,568 24,260
158,166 147,313
Net current assets FERBEE 90,927 111,075
2022 £ HEBLBEHABERAT 113



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sra ISR

As at 31 December 2022 R —E - —_F+_HA=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-—Z=-Z— KT —%
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=1+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FisE FHEx FET
Total assets less current liabilities “EERAHEE 117,745 111,828
Non-current liabilities FnBAE
Lease liabilities HEARE 17 13,682 =
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIRAE 25 147 100
13,829 100
NET ASSETS BEFE 103,916 111,728
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital P& ZX 26 570,858 570,858
Reserves ] (466,942) (459,130)
TOTAL EQUITY BrER 103,916 111,728

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 198 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 10
April 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Chuang
|
Director

EF

FIEFI1BEMNGEYERRERNR T —=
im}ﬂ+EI?%%%Q%H&F%%J%&EEMT
ATREBES :

Huo Chunyu
EEE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

dEN 7
/ \II\I:III\

EER

l\‘/—.]—\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—RHILFE
Non-
controling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
R
LN TN hxiEs  Easr
Share
Share Share  Translation Special Other option  Accumulated
capital ~ premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve loss  Sub-fotal
ke RhEE AERE  FHEE  ApRE ERERE  ZRER )
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
ThAT T T T T Tir T T Tir Tir
(note ) (note i)
(k) (i)
At1 January 2021 H=Z=-£-B-R 510868 3203513 (36490) Q00 (13,000 38449 (3304907 58128 (13278 (55,150)
Profit for the year ERg| - - - - - - KI8T 518 - 587
Loss of the discontinued operation BRIHEELE ER - - - - - - (38479 (38479) - (38479
Other comprehensive income Ef2ERA
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ BEBI 2K ER 2R
foreign operations - - (1,139 - - - - (1,139 - (1,139
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of  HEIB AR EREAE R
subsioliaries - - 39,231 - - - - 39,231 - 39,231
Total comprehensive income for the year EREHMENA - - 38,092 - - - 13,348 51,440 - 51,440
Eouity-setfled share-based payments WEREEIRITRERI = - - - - 2160 - 2,160 - 2160
Released upon Disposal of subsicaries (note 36)  EMBAFRER(H36) = - - - - - - - 113258 113278
Balance as at 31 December 2021 R-B--E+-A=t-BMER 570,868 3,203,513 1,602 (200)  (413,100) 40609 (3291554 111,728 - 111,728
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

\\/T\

—||— N/
/ \Il\l:lll\

EER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E—-—F+-_A=+—RHIFFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company Total
KRTEEARL &3t
Share
Share Share  Translation Special Other option  Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss  Sub-total

Ba  BieE  AERE  GREE HHER  BRERE  ZHER it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn Tin TR TR TERL TEn TER Tin TR

At1 January 2022 Z8-cE-B-f 570,858 3,208,513 1,602 (2000 (418,100) 40609 (3,201,554) 111,728 111,728

Profit for the year Engi - - - - - - 4,555 4,555 4,555

Other comprehensive income Rt 2EUA

Fxchange diferences arising on tranlation of ~~ BE ALK EH 25

foreign operations - - (12,367) - - - - (12,367) (12,367)

Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EANA - - (12,367) - - - 4,555 7812 7812

Balance as at 31 December 2022 RIB-ZETZA=t-RHER 570,858 3,203,513 (10,765) (200 (413,100) 40609 (3,206,999 103916 103,916

Notes: fiaE -

(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal  (j) ERFEEEAERN _ZZT—FHAE  H1lk
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal RSN Tgxfﬁ@fﬁgﬁg$ jgfuyggngi,mE
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time NEIMFPUABET ZAATROEBEZ ZEE o
of the Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

(i) The other reserve represents (1) the difference between the fair value (i)  E fib & & 5 (1) 5L 18 H0 R B B A &) 2 A% 4 B 1+
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in subsidiaries REzZATEEEFIZBRBREER AR =
and the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interest; and B IER B T E R EER A FEEE
(2) deemed capital contribution from shareholders, represented INSE fgz =58 o N (ERZ(ETEHE S
the difference between the principal amount of the shareholder’s BALREAAKRIREREET
loan and its fair value. The fair value is determined by discounting
the estimate future cash flows throughout the expected life of the
repayment.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

relRTnER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZ H=E
—E-= —E-—F
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
LHEE HFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET F&T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZEZRERE
Profit before income tax: BRETEB AR T -
From continuing operations REFERE B 8,267 64,292
From discontinued operations RE BRI E R - (38,479)
Adjustments for: SRR
Depreciation of owned property, BEYE BER
plant and equipment HiBITE 16 171 78
Bank Interest income RITFEWA 6 (1) (11)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBATZEE (W) 36 - 38,489
Equity-settled share-based AR B LARR (D A AR
payment expenses EOENE 3 10 - 2,160
Interest expenses FEEHA ©) - 174
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBHE 781 562
Reversal of expected credit loss BRI TEHEEEERE
provision - (41,358)
Recognition of expected SR Bt FE U TR IR
credit loss on other receivables BHEEER 19 7,276 2,688
Gain on modification of leases HEE 2 W= - (5,408)
Operating profit/(loss) before EELESRFA 2 KE
working capital changes BAL(E8) 16,494 23,192
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TR, () 98 55
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & S EWRZIE R/ (3840) 137 (126)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e« BAFRIERE A EIEIE
prepayments and other receivables WA (g ) (26,480) (73,863)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S ENFTECRD), /N (28) (8,142)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities &% B& &L, OF4d) (9,367) 72,585
Increase/(decrease) in accrued charges T2 F [ H th & {5 7008
and other payables #n,/ CRd) 2,273 (16,161)
Cash used in operations REERFEAZES (16,873) (2,460)
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENEEEREFE (781) (562)
Net cash used in RETBHREARESFE
operating activities (17,654) (8,022)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\/T\/\E/Eui /ﬁiiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE qHE
—E-= —E-—F
+=A=+—-8B +=-A=+—8H
LHEFE HFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MiaE FET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities H&ETE2EHEHE
Interest received [EAL eSS 1 11
Purchase of property, E%ﬁ%% W]
plant and equipment (2,591) (809)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEHBRRZ
of subsidiaries REMAFRE 36 - 10,069
Net cash generated from investing RETEHFEREZHE
activities (2,590) 9,271
Cash flows from financing activities ®EEFHZRERE 29
Net advance from shareholder’s loan MR E R TE FIBFRE 20,185 9,659
Repayment to shareholder’s loan MR EFER (1,725) (1,725)
Payment of principal elements XHHEaEERSHD
of lease liabilities (11,138) (10,874)
Interest paid on other borrowings EffEmERZFIE - (174)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETHMRE (R HLSTHE
financing activities 7,322 (1,389)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and EE%&E%%TEIE Bz
cash equivalents A AR (12,922) 4,860
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHERESEEIER
beginning of the year 20 9,929 4,767
Effect of exchange rate changes on EZSHEEEK
cash and cash equivalents ReEEBEEZEE 4,842 302
Cash and cash equivalents FERZRERBEELEEEE
at end of the year 20 1,849 9,929
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20
April 2001. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is Suite 2310-18th, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 10 April 2028.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2022

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

— AR

TEBLEBRZEEEARAR(TARA DR
—EE AT HERERSHS QA
FE(ZEZE—FEBIIR)ERSEHSEMK
VREREEBRAR c AEMmERKE
2 ¥ B 2 ik 45 B ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands }
BEABNERPHBHEISRREEEANE
2310-18% - AR GIRMNNEBHER S
FrERAR([BEZXAT])GEM LT °

AR —RREZEBRRARF - EE BB
RAZEBHBHARNEGRE M B RKRM
33 ARRIREKBRAR TXHES [
£@] -

HEMBHRRUEBT(TET 25 K5
BRIAESD -

HE S-S+ -_A=+—"HBILFEH
SAMBRERER-_E-_=FMHA+HE
SESAETIE -

RN BBV BHREER([F)
B REZER )

2.1 BT AEIEF BB
%ﬂ—m:g::i—ﬁ—ﬁi
A

AEEEEXRERAEBSMRER
AT BB B REENBETA -
ZEEI AR T _—_F—A—Bk
Z & ABNFEMENGS T BEERER
SRR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

120

2.2

on 1 January 2022 (Cont’d)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its

first time, the amendments to HKFRSs issued by the

HKICPA which are effective for the Group’s financial

year beginning 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

Amendments to HKFRS 16
(March 2021)

Annual Improvements
Project

Amendments to
Accounting
Guideline 5

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new standard,
amendments to standards and interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2022. The new standard,
amendments to standards and interpretation include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

2.1

2.2

HEA([E)
(&)

ERANFTAT -~ AENE 5] BB R &
i?]—)b"‘_ F__F—F—H%
X

REBRAFEEERER T HES
SRS BMG 2 BEBTIEREEL
BEIAR  HRASKE T —_—_F—A&

—BRBZITBREE LR

BBETEAE16 NE - @E&%&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ
CHEN &R Z 50

EESHERETR BREEALN-BIA zvz
(BATA) AR

EREMBREEN  HoERRE
EREACHES)

ERRBHRESEN R-E--ExA=tH%
F165(=F=—  HCOVID-19i8kHE L
F=R)(BITAR)  E®

FEAERR BB RE R —E—

FE-B-SFIFR
Bt

BiRAESH  AREMANMANEHE

(47%)

RAFREREETEAMBRESE
S8 4 3 £ (B 0 K B i K 58 1 B
BRI AR R, Rt FhRE B
BRERABOBRBEELEATE -

AR 5 2 AR AT AT
AT E BT H

REBUWEEAAN-_ZE _—_F—AF—
B 16 B U E B B M 1B i R A

R EMFER - ERERT A MR -
&R ERERIARBREBRTENLT

AIRE AN E AR E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMBEEYBHELEN(E)

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B mEZEL]) (&)

(CONT’D)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but 2.2 B fEMEREMBIFETRAZMIE
are not yet effective (Cont’d) G BB EER(E)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BT | BB E B H

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F10REBeHEE AFHAZEATE
Associate or Joint Venture® F285 ({£:TK) ZHEZEBERE
EAS
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and BB RE LR EREEY
Leaseback? ERACHES)! HEAE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current BB QLS5 BREDEATEH
or Non-current? (B3] K) e
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Palicies' EESHERE1H L @WK 2 HE
HKAS 1 and HKFRS BB BRE RS
Practice Statement 2 ERREEN
CCHEN)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' BB S LR Fg% @ EH 2 ER!
CHES)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and EA @ ER|E125 HE-QIEEY
Liabilities arising from a Single CHEN) EERAERH
Transaction' LIRET A
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BB E15 MEZ#Z
Covenants? (1BETA) FEnEaEe
Hong Kong Interpretation 5  Presentation of Financial Statements- EBREEL%(2020F) HBERRNZY -
(2020) Classification by the Borrower ERAHBEE
of a Term Loan that Contains a ERERERZ
Repayment on Demand Clause? EHRER 5
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 R-ZTE-_=F—H—Hzz&RAK
January 2023. 2 FEHAREMR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-ZZE_WMFE—F—Hsk 2 &M%
January 2024. L EFE B AER -
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 3 AT HEESRZ BRI 2 FEHE
to be determined. AR o
The directors of the Company anticipate that the RNABIEETEG - BANG REERT
application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will BEBVHERELE BT HAER 2
have no material impact on the results and the financial (ENVBRAEEERTE o

position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

122

@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 5.

3.

mEEHE
(a) EHREH

(6)

REMBmRIERMEEREEY
BHEER - FESFEA(EFES
PR R (R BEM B RS
HH| ) - ZFEAVBRRTERK
FERBIGIZHERTE  BREL
BMEXZMBRAFGEMES LR
ARECERRESTERR

FTEEERIFELERR

A MBRRIIILE LKA EE R
B EETERT ARSI -

BHRER  wAEVERREERAS
A RRER - BEUFHEFTIER
EEEHREEFRTBZREADT
Rk HEMIEL  EERERREX
BRI 2BR o FhmEHE
SEME BB KB RA MR
RBEATEZBRIMAFT 2BEH
BERMIFES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

4. EESFTBE

(@)

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT

REBEHREGSEE

REMBRRERBARARENBA
AI(TAEE ] 2MBHRE - KERAF
ZEHRBIRR P MAERARKRER
M IR REE A M REREG 2
i - BRIERZBRAAEREIEED
ARE ZBReRNBRETER - &
AR EEITALE -

FARBREEZWBEAR - EXE
RUEEM B e REEHEEN
B (ER) S ARAEBm R E
feEmBARA - EFER - HEL
AZ M BERESWARE - FEHETEK
REAKEEMKERRAEMDE —
B o

W BB A B R EBIRREEARR -
WIEAATDIZKWERBMERZE
E FEEZABRASE(ERK
BH)BITZREZRAFEBER
E - BB AR EERAIAER
BEEZWBEAMZAFEFE - A
5 B TR AT R E T 2 R DA R B
BN RAFEENTE  MAELEZ
W BEAIRN BT ER - ARE
AEERRZHERE A FERZEMS
WA Al BRI E EFE L PIFTE
HERBATRIME QB EE R
PR R o P H MR AR R A2
BB ATEAE  BIEFEVBR
A B S — B BEE - RIER|
iwoo BB REEAR AN ERLER
o BRIFEAERTRATARRLE
EZBERT  BEAKANEEZRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

124

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(@)

RBEEHRESEE(E

WK TEE EMAREDR
YiE B Q- FERER - HEKES
EEXNHEHR(RERAKEREHE
2@ A) APTES A BRI B 8
MAFEZHERE - SRIREES
R - "HEREEXRABZAAN
BB EMERARGNIED T

27
e ©

AR BB A R 2 s E )
ERRAIEGIE - ASIERER S A
AR ARE 2 E IR M a2 R
EESTARE  ARRENKHER
AR R C B8 o IR R 2
EEHECNIERKEAFEZH
ZIEAERE - AEEREDER - B
FEBRARRHEAA -

HMAREREMB QB 2B - W
EZBENIRTIME ZZ8EHE
HIBRREBz A FEEERFREERS
ZRNTEERE B()ZMBARZE
E(BREE)RE BRI IFERK
RIEMERREE - AT ZIE
REREMEEBAERZ 2 RIZH
EHAEEXRBMAEZHRT R
N

WK HERBAIRMEARES
RZIFERBRERZREERSZE
RN VAR 2 @ 7RI IR
BIRER G EREREE 2 &) -
BN & B BRI R BCR R 2 H 3R B Al
BeR o 2EBRATNRBRZSIHE
PRAR R M2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(6)

(c)

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT
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B I8~ B R AN SR [ BE S Y EL AT (B 4% 6
BEIRETT - MRTE T2
—ERE - AMAKREZEFHRIKRE
7T AIHBRRRETITERES - A
KEERZBRET ZARIBEERNR
BEREXREN ZAZHEE - REH
ERERNARTZEERAEE DR -
BESERBRABREAZSTEH R
RERGEHBREHE - ASEMTE
ELEBEGE -

RARBZHBEARRERA - KB A
Al BRI ERMERE(INE)
IRk o NA TR B LB REARK
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IEBRE

AP mERTIABT(TET]) 25
BN RARE 2SS -

REEEBZERIMBHRRS - INE
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MONEHEZ EREERABRRS
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HENHEAPEHNRETEEEN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

126

(c)

(@)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rate over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

5%—-25%
33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(c)

(@)

SRS (AF)

REEBHBIRERT - BIEBABR
EUATARNAEEZHREE 25 2 @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) (d) Y% - BMEKZE(E)

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
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maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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128

(e)

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-to-use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises
it judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(e)

Leasing (Cont’d)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(e)
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130

()

Financial Instruments

0]

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as following measurement
category:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(f)  Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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132

()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

0]

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies,
the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at FVOCI| are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
aged more than 30 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired or default when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is aged more than 30
days.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.
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()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iij)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings and liability
element of convertible bonds issued by the Group
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iij)  Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Cont’d)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
upon conversion or expiration of the option.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.

Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.
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()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2022

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in note 4(i)(ii); and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Q)

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress
and finished goods, cost also comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.
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138

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, time deposits with banks within original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(1)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time when
the goods are transferred and the customer has
received the goods, since only by the time the Group
has a present right to payment for the goods delivered.
For the provision of service, revenue is recognised
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

Revenue from provision of healthcare products and
services is recognised when the services have been
rendered to customers.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. There is no right of return, volume rebate
and warranty arrangement for the sales of goods and
provision for services.

There is no significant financing components for the
contracts and the consideration is not variable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
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()

(k)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the delivery under such sales contracts
but yet certified by customers. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the
Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. Government grants relating to
costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries,
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
right of use assets, land use rights and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.
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()

(m)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
has been recognised.

Employee benefits

() Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are

recognised when they accrue to employees. A

provision is made for the estimated liability for

annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(n)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. The value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit
to share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax
where applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised in
prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining vesting period.
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()

(p)

Share-based payments

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(q) Accounting for income taxes

() FriE¥z&at B

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
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4.

146

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(q) Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)  The Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following continuing
operations and reportable segment:

- Healthcare products and services — production
and sales of healthcare products and services.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that:

- finance costs

- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of

any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
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(r)

(s)

Segment reporting (Cont’d)

In March 2021, the Group disposed of its “cell products
and services”; “cosmetics products and others”
business. In June 2021, the Group disposed of its
cell technology business (collectively the “Disposed
Segments”).

The Disposed Segments represented a major business
line of the Group in the last financial year and regarded
as Discontinued Operations in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Accordingly, the related financial information of the
Disposed Segments were not included in the operating
segment information from the continuing operations
and the comparative information was also reclassified
to conform with the current period presentation.
Further details of the Disposed Segments are set out in
note 8.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(r)

(s)

D EBERE (4E)

AEBER-_ZT-_—F=AHE 4
PO E @ R ARFS | 82 [ btk an R HoAth 3
BeMRZEZ—FH AKEE
TEHEMABRBMEER (KB IEED
gl e

EENHRAEE L—MRFENE
BEBOIX  URBEBEVBEREE
RIS [FFHE RERIERERT
HSERBEE [RIFERIEEER -

Bt - B %5 EH AR RIS E B 3 R
MARBEBEBOEEH BER
HEBERTEEEHSE - UEREE

HE2% - DEDHNEZFHBHN
MIzES ©
BE A T

(@ MBI TAL:  BlsZzALaizz
Aiz FREKE EHAEE
BHE
(i) IEHIEERE G AERE
(il HAEEEEARTE

RANEBEHIARFERF
MEEEBEXE -

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESFTHE(E)
(CONT’D)
(s) Related parties (Cont’d) (s) EFEAL (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) MHFFE TIEMEE - BNEE
following conditions apply: HALEBERE :

()  The entity and the Group are members of () Z%ERBHEALSEBR %
the same group (which means that each )3 = WNECINQE RS S /N
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is al -~ M B A A K E R B
related to the others). NEELEBEE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy —HAEERS —EBME
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ENAlSEaEE(EHS
venture of a member of a group of which the —ERAEKERAIZE
other entity is a member). ETHRKERARZHEZE R 7

HEERE) -

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same (iiy MAEBHAR-—F=7
third party. VEERE -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity ivy —HAEBAE=FEEN
and the other entity is an associate of the EETE WME—EE
third entity. RBEZBEZTEBEBNBEA

ET o

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit v) EBRBAASEHHEAEE
plan for the benefit of the employees of the FHECEEREENS
Group or an entity related to the Group. BB AE AT S o

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (i) EBREX(Q)FT#H#AI A THEH
by a person identified in (a). S REH o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) ﬁé(a)()ﬁﬁ;&f&u}\téﬁ g
influence over the entity or is a member of BEEATENNBEZER
key management personnel of the entity (or (HZEBEBENERA)EE
of a parent of the entity). EIEEKE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (viii) MAKE K RAARNEEETR
which it is a part, provides key management AREFEEREABER
personnel services to the Group or to the BOEBREBEEMKE
Group’s parent. NGIIE

2022 i PEBEBERARERAR 149



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

150

(s) Related parties (Cont’d)

(t)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(s)

(1)

BEEAN £ (#E)

ﬁ?ﬂ/\iZL%ﬁ%ﬁ%}i,\%éﬁf‘éﬁ%?&
FEAMEEEZALHZZ
BIREZREKE B

() ZALTZFLREBERRES
&

(i) ZATEBRXREMFEBZ T
Z &

FALTRERBRREMLR
FEA o

REREERE

%$Elliﬂ&$lﬁb\%ﬁ*£éjﬁﬁ
BE MZEEAEERAER S

E"l‘El’Jf”*&/%“?ﬁJmmHjﬂ—r R R R

Mk 8RR AREE -

(i)

ETAABEARENDEME - SR
AR R MRAEERER
SBERE - FRIFEEN DR H 2 A6
R R BIE RIS - RIREBAENER
T (EFEER - BEXZERAKRS
AERBLEMBEE) TERESLE
BE - FRIFEIBE N IR B 2 AT BE 1R
RAERI®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(1)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on ageing analysis for groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECLs to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing
of trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
The Group’s management determines the impairment
of trade and other receivables on a regular basis.
This estimate is based on the credit history of its
customers or debtors and current market conditions.
Management reassesses the impairment of trade and
other receivables at the reporting date.

5.

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT

B2 2 5T (4 5t R I

AEERBEGARERLAEMAER  BFY
ERBABEEGENRKEMHMNES
FEBAET R A EETTRE -

SR B BL R SR AE (A AT e B - AT LA
ittt (EBRER)ELVEEHERS
—H - ARSI BN T EFBRFEHEE
REEREEEEHERFHENERRERH
et RERmAMT

() EZRAMEKSENEAEE
R

AEEERBBRERESE S EWHRIA
AEEHEEER  AAEREREE
REARUBREANSEERS A
ETHREDNT - BEREDREE
BEEUELR2HBANEEERFLD
st - RFFRZEREEBRCE &8
FRYFIBERE - EFEERERE
P BRI IR S A R 3R 1T e TR ER EE B AR %
MR REG - ML &SRB FEEE
B ERHIHE -

BHREEBEENBEIXBREGR
BRAEBEERINEE - ERFPY
B S TR R BB - BERE
BRESTRESNMG - ARENE
BEEHETEE S KEMEKFRDN
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

152

(7)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables (Cont’d)

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. The
Group recognised the provision for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
debtors, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery
and considering the prevailing economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade and
other receivables with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$71,000 and HK$263,113,000
respectively and provision for allowance for expected
credit losses of other receivable approximately
HK$7,276,000.

The information about the expected credit losses on
the Group’s trade and other receivables is disclosed in
notes 19 and 35 to the financial statements.

5.

BAS2 S T (5t R I (&)

(1)

B 5 REMERIERREE
iR ()

hH B WOk IR S I B = HR A B R A
ASHEEN  CHENEBERYESN
REEHATEROEAMS @ KF
TR AR RERE - AREFEBN
EEFANEERRER - BRREEK
Ui (3] 7] BE 1 3 & 8 & A AR PR 1R T
REHEEBERE -

RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' K&
EHEEREED A AT71,0008 7T
}263,113,0008 T E 5 K& H b fE
IWeskTE - MEMEWRREZBHEE
BB B4 57,276,0007 7T °

AEEE SR bR S
B 5 BB B 7 R M SE19 1235
PR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(i)  Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in healthcare products and
services during the year. The Group concluded that
the Group acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified products and services
before it is transferred to the customer after taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the
products and services. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises such
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled as specified in the

contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised revenue relating to healthcare products
and services amounted to HK$231,612,000, which
was substantially generated through the platform
of Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd,
which Mr. Wang Chuang acted as the previous chief

executive officer of that company.

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND

LOSS

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold

or service provided during the years presented.

5. ARG SHhET R HE (&)

(i) ZFEALRERAE

AEERF AN ERNEEERNR
%o ARERER R AKREETZ
EXGNEREAN BREEARTFE
BRIIR S T 15 E M E am M AIRT - B
EERAKEIERRERITREER
KRG AHFER - EAKEETT
B TR - AN B ARR W
CRAARERNERESS M
ERMRERR -

REBE_T_—_F+-_A=+—H1
FE - RNEBERERA AR R E SR
AR IS B231,612,000/8 7T © K
HomENMEELEEZRMZAER
NEMFEELE  MEETLEGEE
ZAFINEREEE °

6. WmERkEMBA BHERER

AEBEZEXBERERFEAREEE
2R ReEEmIERURBERF
ErftE 2 Uz -

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Contracts with customers within the BREBYIEHRE LR E 1558

scope of HKFRS 15: HEANNEFEH
Continuing operations BREREEK

Sales of goods (at a point of time) HEEm 13,609 11,629
Services income (over time) BR AU A (B FREIER ) 218,003 271,268
231,612 282,897
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154

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND
LOSS (CONT’D)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for services that
had an original expected duration of one year or less.

Other income, gain and loss recognised from continuing

=y

bﬂ‘ﬁ |/
~ F/N

Y
(

n

REMEA - Wz kEE

AEBEERAEEVBREERIFE 155
FI2IRFHAIITRENEZREHEERY
£ Eit B ERA A BERAKER K
RERHMFRAR—FHATZRBEALE
T HEHBRBRONEERARESZKRAENE

%o

AEEARBREEBZERAE MK

operations during the year is as follows: A W RSB
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEIT
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1 11
Government grant income (note i) gL ONC D) 485 87
COVID-19-related rent concessions A REAICOVID-19
from lessors HEHEER 428 3,130
Gain on modification of leases HEER 2 W - 1,834
Others (note ii) E At (BT i) 3,604 1,020
4,518 6,082
Note (i): During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group have M) : a2 T -_—_F+-_A=+—H 1t

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss a
subsidy of approximately HK$485,000 (2021: HK$87,000)
from the Employment Support Scheme by the Government
of Hong Kong.

Note (ii): During the year ended 31 December 2022, others mainly
comprise income from written-off of long aged service
deposits and miscellaneous income (2021: miscellaneous
income).

B 3 (i)

FE AEEERGAEaRRER
KB & BT &L )80 R A
485,000 T (ZF = —4 : 87,0008
JT) °

BE—Z-_—_Fft+-A=1t—HLF

B Bt EZBEMEKE RERR
BIETHPRARBERRA(ZZT = —
F:HBEEA) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major product and service lines.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
identified the following continuing operations and reportable
segment:

- Healthcare products and services — production and
sales of healthcare products and services.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that:

- finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

In March 2021, the Group disposed of its “cell products

and services”; “cosmetics products and others” business
(collectively the “Disposed Segments”).

The Disposed Segments represented a major business
line of the Group in the last financial year and regarded as
Discontinued Operations in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Accordingly, the related financial information of the Disposed
Segments were not included in the operating segment
information from the continuing operations. Further details of
the Disposed Segments are set out in note 8.

7 EE#
N

SERBEARTEST(AILRAKETELZ
REE) 2ERARBEEFREARE S EHK
D H)E IR D BC KRR R D R B A E A
NEH B ER - EREZE DI RRmED B
BH - AATES2ROABMBERRA
BB D TIRIE AN SR 8 2 an S IR 75
D XHETE ©

BE—_TE-_—F+=-A=1+—"HIFE -
AEEEHR THFELEERE KA 25R

S

—  RERFEEMRRS — K@FEE MR
BHEEMBEE -

AEBERBEEMERELRNESHUBES
DEEEMFANGERR  EREFE
MBRELERNRIBHRRARANER -
HEAT &R

- HMBER

- FEM

— YHERRBREMNKLEDHIFE
AEREEBMA R

R BERENMNRERERY TEEE

A o

AEBER T - F=ZALEIARER

R AR#5 8 i R B |5 (R [ B

S8l e

EENMAREE F—MRFENEEE
Box  WIREEEY B REERESHR
[(BEHEMERIEEEXBHOIERDE
EIREERIEEEER -
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BTSRRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 — T~ —

F+-A=t—BLLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. EBEER(E)

Continuing
operations
FREREER
Healthcare
products
and services
REREMRER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HK$’000
RBE-Z-_—"F+=-HA=+—HLFE FHExT
Reported segment revenue A S 9 A 231,612
Reported segment profit A & 9 50 7 20,934

Depreciation of property, M BERERBEITE
plant and equipment (171)
Interest income FEHA 1

Discontinued operations

Continuing operations

BRAILREER BESEER

Healthcare

Cell products products
and services and services Total
BRER RS ABEERRRYE -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
REZ-Z--F5+-B=t-HLFE TEL FET TEx
Reported segment revenue AREDBURA - 282,897 282,897
Reported segment profit ARED P 10 40,392 40,402

Depreciation of property, nE - BERZERTE

plant and equipment - (78) (78)

Interest income HMEKA

11 11
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BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments 7N £ [ 4% 4 5 ER B T Y 48 B8 B K & B B
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in FEIRET| R BRI IS SR SR T ¢
the financial statements as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Continuing operations BESEER
Reportable segment revenue BT E2Hmo W= 231,612 282,897
Group revenue EF Uz 231,612 282,897
Reportable segment interest income A ¥ & 5 A 2 WA 1 1
Group’s interest income REBRHFBUA 1 11
Total reportable segments’ profit AT 25 Ebm M ABEE 20,934 40,392
Reversal of provision for expected credit ~ EE & EETEHEEEEEE
loss due to subsequent settlement Z B0 - 41,353
Unallocated corporate income AOBEEFEWA 1,482 2,233
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBETERY (13,369) (18,950)
Finance costs 7% % (781) (736)
Profit before income tax BR P 158 AT R 8,267 64,292
Income tax expenses FrefiA = (3,712 (12,465)
Profit for the year from continuing BEKEER
operations RE A 4,555 51,827
Discontinued operations BRIEEEXK
Loss before income tax MRETEHATER - 10
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 EE - (38,489)
Loss for the year REEEE - (38,479)
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7.

158

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BT ERDPEE 27,604 57,084
Cash and bank balances R NIRITHERR 1,849 9,929
Other corporate assets HihdFEEE 246,458 192,128
Group assets EBEE 275,911 259,141
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities BATEHRDEAE 83,784 87,228
Shareholder’s loans H“%fﬁm 48,414 29,954
Deferred taxation IREF IR 147 100
Lease liabilities HEBGE 14,082 5,870
Other corporate liabilities HihhEAE 25,568 24,261
Group liabilities SEaE 171,995 147,413

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,
exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segments.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets other than non-current rental deposits
(“Specified non-current assets”) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

AOBEFERAXEZBEIFEEBEMAL
ENBMIEBEHEENETIAN  [EX
BE - UEREEURO SEROMNR
He REMFAX -

AEBERBINATFPHOBEREFFRBE
ECERBHEERSKRIN (BEFRRDE
EDZBESFOT

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREF HERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F —E-CF B —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FAETT
Continuing operations BEREER
Hong Kong 55 17,233 20,689 26,818 753
The PRC (domicile) R (=S FTEHE) 214,379 262,208 - -
231,612 282,897 26,818 753
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —E - —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
revenue derived from various customers.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets.

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 2021, the Group ceased several
operations as detailed in note 7. The results of discontinued
operations of Disposal Groups are set out below.

7. DEBER (&)

HE—_E-_—_S+-_A=t+—HI1EE -
AEBRZKBEZHEF

5P R YRR PTIR L 2 AR IS 22 Y
EmtEE D o 5 #mibéfﬁzim!ﬁ
TiRBEEEERMEE D

8. Miﬁ«(#&%ﬁ%

@iigifiiif PRt EE TR AL - AR
SERIIZEZE HEKREMNDRILEE
“%%%ﬁﬂﬁmT-

Year ended

31 December
2021

BHE

T —F
+=—A=+—H
IFFE
HK$’000
FHTT

Revenue

Expenses

Profit before income tax
Income tax credit

Uy 25

Fx

B TS B A4t 71
PSR %

444
(434)
10

BR TS 18048 7

Profit after income tax

10
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 8.

The net cash flows incurred in discontinued operation of
Disposal Groups are as follows:

ERIEEEXHK(E)

HERBNERIERLEXRBELNFRS

N = .
MELT

Year ended

31 December
2021

BHE
T
+t=—A=+—8
IEFE
HK$’000
FHTT

Operating activities KRR
Financing activities BEEE)

159,785
(175,916)

Net cash flows FIREME

(1,613)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Groups at the date of disposal are disclosed in note
36. The operating profit for the year from the discontinued
operation was HK$Nil (2021: HK$10,000) and the total loss
for the year from discontinued operation was HK$Nil (2021:
HK$38,479,000). The loss on disposal of the Disposal
Groups of HK$Nil (2021: HK$38,489,000).

HESBREEAENEERBENERR
ERK 36 HE - ERIEKEEEBNEE
ESERATBET(ZZEZ—4F 10,000/
T RERIEEEERENTEGERABEAT
BT(ZF = —4 : 38,479,000/87T) ° H
EEENTEBEASEL(ZT_—F :
38,489,000/ 7T ) °

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HIEEBH
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT T
Interest on: ME :

— Other borrowings and shareholder’s —HMERMEEER
loans - 174
— Lease liabilities —-HEAaR 781 562
781 736
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10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFF BB AR A

SEEEEB 2 BB R AR 2
B (GTA) TFEIBIA -

Profit before income tax expense from continuing operations
is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BREM N & 1,000 1,000
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BMERRGITE
equipment 171 78
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 5,220 =
Advertising and marketing, included ESkmigHERY
in selling and distribution expenses (EBREEHEERDHEAZH) 1,072 817
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE S 45 H UARR (D A ER &M K - 2,160
Exchange difference, net b X, = 5858 - 14
Short term lease expense MHIEERY - 309
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 189,925 178,723
Wages and salaries ITENHS 9,038 12,926
Equity-settled share-based payments LA =% 45 B UARR D B E IR A5 51 - 2,160
Pension costs — defined BIRE A — EREHRETE
contribution plans 299 456
Other staff benefits EhE TEA 764 836
Employee benefit expenses BERAFAZ(BEESHE
(including directors’ emoluments (FFzE12))
(note 12)) 10,101 16,378
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EE <
The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or payable EffsENEESHNEIESENT :

to the directors are as follows:

Defined
Salaries and  contribution
Fees  allowances scheme Total
He FeREl  EEMNHE I
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Tax TEn Tax
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E--FE+-A=t-HLEE
Executive director HITES
Mr. Wang Chuang TREE 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin BEERE 30 270 14 314
Independent non-executive directors  BUEHTEE
Ms. Huo Chunyu EERNT 120 - - 120
Mr. Leung Man Fai D2VBS A 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Ming 2|+ 120 - - 120
1,590 270 14 1,874
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BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

1. EEWE (8)

Defined

Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances scheme Total
e HeREH  ERiHEE a&f

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TAL TAL

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--F+-B=t-HLEE
Executive director HTES
Mr. Wang Chuang TEEE 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin LHEBEE - 360 18 378
Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTES
Dr. Fang Jun kBT

(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R=B=—F+-A=1HEf) 120 - - 120
Ms. Yang Ying BExt

(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R=B=—F+-A=1HEf) 120 - - 120
Ms. Huo Chunyu EELLL 120 - - 120
Mr. Leung Man Fai PNEEE 1 = - 1
Dr. Liu Ming ZlmE T 1 - - 1

1,562 360 18 1,940

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for
the non-executive directors are generally emoluments in
respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

BHE_ 2 _—_#kk-_FT-_—%+=A
=t+—HtEEHEEERESIRERE
EABE 2 T HE -

AEEYBAZEEIMNEIAME - FRMN
AZRER B AN AN 5 (B By 7 22 R ok B
e

SN TFHRTESTZ2HRE  FeEMAE

FRUNZFEATEREEARARENE
NAEEBHEMRE S 2 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 1. E5M< (&)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments including share-
based payment expenses were the highest in the Group
for the year included one (2021: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2021: four
individuals) were as follows:

RARFEREANFREMEH - NQAHTE
RIVEAKEEXRGAEMESNEFER
HEEBEEARENEARS  RHFX
=R

ESMZ

AEBFRNAEZESHFAT(EME2E
DB AERZNFAL)BE—R(=ZF
T—F:—R)EFE HEMEe RN LD
MA B TITOZAL(ZZTE-—F : [F)
RE T :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FATT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 2,856 4,654
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R K4E K5+ 2 £ 7 67 58
2,923 4,612

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals
fell within the following band:

HFEENRSHFALHHMEN FATHE
AR

Number of individual

AE
2022 2021
—E-= —=EF-—
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these four
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

AEBEWEAZOAL AL EABEE
BMARMAREENFR @ HIERKE
BizmmE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

12.

13.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

12 BERAFAX(BRESHE)

2022 2021

—E-= —EB - —4F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FExT THT

Wages and salaries TERF® 9,038 12,926

Equity-settled share-based payments VAR = 45 H DARR (D B E TR &1 3K - 2,160

Pension costs — defined contribution plans R k% 5k 28 — £ 28 4L K ETE 299 456

Other staff benefits HEib B T1EF 764 836

10,101 16,378

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. FTBHHAX

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2 BEMASFNEREE  REBKIYD

million of profits of the qualifying group entity established in
Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits
of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.
The PRC enterprise income tax of 25% is applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

AEREBEER A E2,000,000% 7Tk A
# #8.25% 1M B8 7% B AR i A A5 LA
16.5% KB R B - N1 & K15 7 ™ AR i
ZEEERMNGENSEEZ165%MH K
BB o NEE T BB R RERA25% 2 F
BEEMAEN o BINIBRIREARFE
ARG M IE AR EE LA 2R

TR EH o

2022 2021
—E-C—fF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHEIT
Profit tax MEH
- current tax —E A 3,665 12,365
Deferred taxation (note 25) BT (MI5E25)
— Income tax expenses —FEHAX 47 100
3,712 12,465
Income tax expense is attributable to: BRRATEIBZFAEHAY
— Continuing operations —RBEBREER 3,712 12,465
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

E_F_—F+_A=+—HLFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONT’D) 13. TS5 (&)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting HERAMERAE 2 ERIEKE L2 TER
loss at applicable tax rates: ZHERWT :
2022 2021
—=E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT THBIT
Profit before tax RRBE A% Fl 8,267 64,292
Notional tax calculated at the rates BABIERERRE 2 EE
applicable to the loss in the tax HAZHEGFENER
jurisdictions concerned fia 1,364 16,296
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR RERNE 2 A 1%
for tax purposes A 3,697 1,234
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAFRRBA NS 2
tax purposes (3,210) (11,231)
Tax effect of unused tax losses REARBEENONREZE 1,861 6,166
Income tax expenses FTEHmEx 3,712 12,465
14. DIVIDENDS 14. IR E
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders RAEEEMENEZZRE TARAR
of the Company for both years, nor has any dividend been TERKRE  BmSHRETEREZEM
proposed since the end of the reporting period. RS o
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BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
result attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

15. BREA,(E#E)

FHBH -

FREXRRN, (BR) HREBNRARF
BBEANZEBERAFACD BT EBRINE

2022 2021
—EgE-= —_EF_—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to SBENRARNTEE A
owners of the Company: 2 EBREF,(&EE)
From continuing operations REFELLER 0.002 0.020
From discontinued operations R E B A& T - (0.010)
0.002 0.010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THET
Profits attributable to equity holders of HESREREFNEAZ
the Company used in calculating basic RARERFAA
earnings per share: FEAG A A -
From continuing operations REFELEZER 4,555 51,827
From discontinued operations REB RIS ER - (38,479)
4,555 13,348
Number of ordinary BETEREREE (TK)
shares in issue (thousands) 2,854,290 2,854,290
The computation of diluted earning per share does not FREEENNTE REAND 7 AR

assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
because the exercise price of those options was higher
than the average market price for shares for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. Accordingly, the numbers
of ordinary shares used as denominators in calculating the

BRI REBE—

TE__FR

RETE  BAZSERENTEESR
B —F+ =
A=+—BLEFEMNFHME - At » 5
BEGRERAREEZNEBES LR
BEBHER BAEE T -_—_FK_F

basic and diluted earning per share are the same as there T —EFE+ - A=+—RHIEEIEZELE

were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year

ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

EEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

168

16. W% - MERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
B £E }
HENEREE & %M RE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TAL TATL
COST A
At 1 January 2021 R-F-—%-f—-H 101,817 51,840 1,699 3% 165,710
Additions NE - 698 111 - 809
Exchange Difference ERES - 573 - - 573
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR - (1,871) - - (1,871)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--F+ZA=1t-BkK
1 January 2022 ZE-ZFE-f-H 101,817 51,240 1,770 394 155,221
Additions NE 2,336 169 86 - 2,591
At 31 December 2022 R-E--£+-A=+-A 104,153 51,409 1,856 394 157,812
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION £iE
At 1 January 2021 W-E-—%—F—H 101,817 50,536 1,669 394 154,406
Charge for the year REER = 53 25 = 78
Depreciation efiminated on disposals of ~ HEMEA TN E
subsidiary - (16) - - (16)
At 31 December 2021 and RZB--£+-A=t-HK
1 January 2022 :g::ﬁ A—H 101,817 50,573 1,684 394 154,468
Charge for the year KEEMR 4 83 47 - 1
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—fE+-fA=1-H 101,858 50,656 1,731 394 154,639
CARRYING VALUE BEE
As at 31 December 2021 WZE-—F+-fA=1-H - 667 86 - 753
As at 31 December 2022 N=E-—F+-fA=1-H 2,295 753 125 - 3,173
In view of the businesses and operations of the Group, the ERIAEENEBREE  ARAES
directors of the Company did not identify indications of W B RRETR - Eﬁ(lﬁt Eﬂzifz::

impairment and thus, no impairment loss was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

FR

-+ -_A=+—BItFEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

17. LEASES

(a) Right-of-use assets

r-E-—

F+-A=t—BILFE

17. &
(a) EHEEE

Equipment Offices Total
By WA= BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT THT
At 1 January 2021, R-Z_—%—A—H"
31 December 2021 and —Z-_—%+ZH
1 January 2022 =t+—HR-ZE-_F
—A—H
Opening net book amount HiR AR B = - -
Additions NE 2,920 25,945 28,865
Depreciation e (175) (5,045) (5,220)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 2,745 20,900 23,645
2022 2021
—E_C —EB - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Short term lease expenses HHEERY - 309
Total cash outflow for leases MER MM ERE 11,359 7,744
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. LEASES (CONT’D)

170

(a) Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

0]

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases its office premises. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3
years.

Lease term are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leases assets that are held by the lessor.
Leases assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purpose.

Lease obligations are approximately HK$25,945,000
(2021: nil). The lease obligation does not contain
any renewable and termination options.

Depreciation expenses have been charged in
“General and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months.

In addition, the Group leases a number of
equipment for its operations. Lease obligations
are approximately HK$2,920,000 (2021: nil). The
lease obligation does not contain any renewable
and termination options. The leases run for an
initial period ranged from one to three years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

17. & (

9=

MR

)

(a) EHEEE (&)

(i)
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AEBHEERREYE -
ENHEFHBEEE/IF -

HEMLRENEEER - B
B2 KE R B BRR R AR
BREEARANHEEERR
on Bz sh - FH 5tk 0 4 i OO
ERER - HEEETTRE
AR rE W g o

THEHAIE425,945,000/% 7T (=
T —F:F) HEFEETE
SR EE R AR RIS -

FERXEREABRaRN [ —
BRITHRA IRk -

HIGHEERENNTARR
EREBERAERRFAX - B8
HEEHEHA12(EA -

BN AEEREEBHEES
TH A o M E#HE492,920,000
BR(ZE-_—F:F) - HE
EETBEEMNTEERKIE
BEE - HENOTHREN T
—E=F o R T IRE R E %
= BRERKETRMER
M - RETHBERTEHET
AHMEARERE  AEEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. LEASES (CONT’D) 17. HE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HHEEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHTT
Lease liabilities HERE
— Current portion —RBE D 9,916 5,870
— Non-current portion —FEREE D 13,682 -
23,598 5,870
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREERNREEHBERAT :
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
BEHEENRK FE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THBTT TBTT FHBTT
As at 31 December 2022 NR-EBE-_—F
t=A=+—8
Not later than one year —F R 10,860 (944) 9,916
Later than one year and —FLLERMEA
not later than two years 14,165 (483) 13,682
25,025 (1,427) 23,598
As at 31 December 2021 N-EBE-—F
+=RA=+—H
Not later than one year —FR 5,931 (61) 5,870
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates FERNHERBENMERESEEER
applied to lease liabilities range is 4.0%-7.0% (2021: MENF4.0%E7.0%(—E=-—F
5.00%). 5.00%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Raw materials EA R 286 384
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 19. EZERFIE « 12E€ ~ FABYRIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES & E it E W Fh 18
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
(a) Trade receivables (a) ESZEWFE
Current assets: MENEE -
Trade receivables B 5 W FRIE 71 208
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other (b) &% - BEERHib
receivables e
Rental deposit HEZe 5,657 7,571
Other deposits Hize 962 2,023
Prepayments TERTRIE 2,557 41,362
Other receivables H h e W kI8 263,113 215,087
272,289 265,993
Less: Expected credit losses/ R EAth FE Y GRIE Y TR HA
Impairment losses of other EERBERE
receivables (25,402) (18,126)
246,887 247,867
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT’D)

19. BZEUGRIE » % « FANFE
Ko HL At FE WK IR (48)

Movements in the impairment losses in respect of trade FRNE 5 EWFRIE & E b fE W kI8 /)R E

receivables and other receivables during the year are as EEEEINT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EWFHENHESE
(lifetime expected credit losses (HEFHEN2HAES
collectively assessed) FEEE)
At 1 January Rn—H—H - 74,106
Written-off of impairment loss during FRMIHR R EE 1R
the year - (74,106)
At 31 December Rt+=—B=+—H - =
2022 2021
—E-_C B —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHETT
Impairment loss on other receivables X fth f&E U 218 (Y R (B B 12
(lifetime expected credit losses ({& B Pk Ky 2 HA R HA
individually assessed) FEER)
At 1 January w—A—H 18,126 56,791
Expected Credit Loss recognised FRNERNTEHREEEE
during the year 7,276 2,688
Reversal of impairment loss during FRERRREEE
the year - (41,353)
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 25,402 18,126
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BT RRB

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

1S,

174

TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT’D)

The changes in the gross carrying amount of trade and other
receivables are mainly due to new financial assets originated
or purchased during the year. During the year ended 31
December 2022, no impairment losses of trade receivables
is recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the impairment losses of other receivables recognised during
the year were mainly due to the assessment result of lifetime
expected credit losses. Management identified that these
debtors are in financial difficulty and the recoverability of
these receivables was remote.

Other receivables mainly represent the net of payment in
advance to the designated service provider in PRC to offset
future operating costs incurred, receipt in advance from
customers on behalf of the Group by the designated service
provider in PRC and the receivables arising from the services
provided by the designated service provider on behalf of the
Group to its customers.

As at year end date, ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

9. %%Jﬁﬂ&fklﬁ s BE - FANARE

Ko HL At FE WK IR (48)

B LEMERFENRAREZSH TS
HRFAELASBENNESRMEEME
BE_Z_—_F+-_A=+—RHILFE -
WEE S EWHRIEREREBERR - 82
— - —HF+-_A=1+—HItFE FA
EREMEKRRENREBEEETERARN
FHEHEEEENTLER SEER
RULEES AEER I BRRE# - xS ER
FRIE A A] U [B] M R o

H i & YR IR I B 45 A P B 4 E BR % L R
B R TR ORI BEIAE AT E £ R R
FEERAN - PEEERBHEHAANE
B W B Y B P TR MR IR K S TE IR e
RAKERETEFRENRGAELNE
WOROR -

REER  BEHREFAZEEXRRAY
RN mER 2 R T T

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

0-90 days 0% 90K 71 208

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2021: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 35.

AEEBRTEHERFZIFHEEHA0E
180K (=ZZF=——4%F : 60E180K) °

ANEERIEN F4FT IS 5T BUER R E S
B - BEAEECEERRURE S REAM
ERFBELEEERRNE—THFBHAR
MIsE35 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED

20.iﬁgﬁl&iﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ//EiHi?ﬁﬁﬁ?f

BANK DEPOSITS TR
2022 2021
—=E-= T —%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Cash and bank balance RE NLIR1Ta 1,849 9,929

Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits
of the Group are HK$5,700 (2021: HK$7,362,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are recognised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

21. TRADE PAYABLES

HIBONE o

21. BEZ BN FUR

AEBZEESRRTER  DHTERERE
FERRPRZEBITIUARE(TARE])
SHEZRITAS, 7008 T (2 - —4F ¢
7,362,000 L) - ARKIIER B A K
ZEEE o 1R E R B A i 2 HNE S TR R &
HE - EERNEETERT  ASEEE
BRERBETIIEEE ZRITHEARE

2022 2021

—E-CF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

0-30 days 0E 30K 53 84
31-60 days 31 260X - )
53 89

General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60

HEBRL 2 —REEHNFI0KXE60

days. X °
22. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 22 EtER N EMENFIE
PAYABLES

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET Tt
Accrued charges JEETE 7,652 3,707
Other payables H b e3R8 5,820 6,833
13,472 10,540
2022 3} hHBLBEHEERAT 175



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities mainly relate to advance consideration
received from customers to deliver healthcare products and
render related services. The contract liabilities will be offset
against to the healthcare products or services consumed
by customers and will be recognised as revenue when
the said products and services are rendered according to
applicable accounting policies of the Group. The decrease in
contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the decrease in
membership fees received from customers in relation to the
provision of the said products and services at the end of the

23.

BHES

Mk

\

BRHABEZEREPRINNERE
o RERHEERBHRR - aNEEKH
FEEEPERNBREMARY - IR
BEAKEERNSFTBRRERE LAER
KRG EBRBRATER - —F-—F8
WBENRDEZHRFERETP WEH
HRH EAERRREAEBNS 8 E TR

oo

\

24.

176

year.
Movements in contract liabilities = N=b- =L
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Balance at 1 January R—HA—Br&ES 76,600 3,900
(Decrease)/Increase due to operations FREEBE
in the year CRA) /#En (6,343) 79,009
(Decrease) in contract liabilities as a result FRER W ZEHE L
of recognising revenue during the year aECHD) (9,514) (2,614)
(Decrease) in contract liabilities as a result G A HE i E A 7l EE
of disposal of subsidiaries during the year & & & & (F ) - (3,695)
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—HBH%&&% 60,743 76,600

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as

PTETFTERRBTHNENEENRSZE
7% FHRBRT —EMRFEEHERR

revenue in next financial year. Wz o
SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS 24. RERERK
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Current portion BNEA=R 9 48,414 29,954

As at 31 December 2022, shareholder’s loans were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
whole amount of shareholder’s loans were classified as
current liabilities.
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25.

206.

DEFERRED TAXATION 25, JEFERL 1B
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference ELERENEEAE ,zL/{$’$l & & BT IE
under the liability method using the rates of taxation BRI EIR T =58 ELTR
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. The HEBEZE8HWT :
movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
2022 2021
—E_C —E= - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT TET
At the beginning of the year F 1) 100 674
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss for ke, GTAAFEERR
the year 47 100
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries 1 & [} BB A 718 BUSFER
(Note 36) (Pf17%36) - (674)
147 100
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax losses NR—_EBE-_—_F+_B=+—H ' ~&EH
of HK$129,439,000 (2021: HK$65,282,000) available for ﬁ N8 BB B 18 B 38 129,439, OOO,% (=
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has T~ —4F : 65,282,000/ 1) © ] R K
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the ?u;ﬁag;ﬁ%iﬂ ° mm*m;ﬁéfrwjﬂz;ﬁa’QKEﬁ;ﬁ
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire HIME - W ES B IBE B RIELETIBE
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were E o MEEBREREELSEFRBAE%RE
incurred. HY o
SHARE CAPITAL 26. IR 7
Number of Nominal
shares value
RAEE HE
HK$’000
THET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, Rn—Z-_—%—H—H-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, —E-—%+-A=1+—8"
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —E-_F—F—HK
—T__Ft-RA=t—8"
FREE0.2BTH AR 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, Rn—Z-_—F—H—H-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, —E-—F+-A=+—H"
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —E-_F—HF—HK
—T__Ft-A=t—8"
FREE0.2B LA L@ 2,854,289,500 570,858
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

178

THE COMPANY

E_F_—F+_A=+—HLFE

27. AR A Z BB AR R

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TFET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-use Assets EREEE 20,900 -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 200 200
21,100 200
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments e~ BRI R E M EIGRIE
and other receivables 8,373 57,549
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B A Bl I8 121,666 73,947
Cash and bank balance e MIRTTH 76 59
130,115 131,555
Current liabilities nEEE
Accrued charges and other payables et &R N E M EERIE 12,838 6,987
Shareholder’s loans fEERE R 16,239 16,258
Lease liabilities MEBE 8,648 =
37,725 23,245
Net current assets BREEE 92,390 108,310
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 113,490 108,510
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease liabilities HERE 12,759 -
NET ASSET BEE 100,731 108,510
TOTAL EQUITY HERERS
Share capital % 7R 570,858 570,858
Reserves f#fa (470,127) (462,348)
TOTAL EQUITY S 100,731 108,510
Approved and authorised for issue by Board of Directors on RZZE-_=FNA+HEESZS I ELKK
10 April 2023. RETBE o
On behalf of the directors REESH
Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
TH E5E
Director Director
E2 E2
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28. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 28. RN E
Share Share option Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

Rtvaf BEERG RtEG  ENRR  RIER @t
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$000
TERE TR THT THT TR TR

At 31 December 2020 and RZE-Z2£+-A E‘l‘ A
1 January 2021 Bo®-—E_f— 3203513 38449 12,238 73 (3,901,997)  (647,724)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ UEREEL KA A
EBGHR - 2,160 - - - 2,160
Profit for the year TEE R - - - - 183216 183,216
At 31 December 2021 and i —
1 January 2022 +-A=+-8k
—“E-—F-F—H 3,203,513 40,609 12,238 73 (3,718,781)  (462,348)

Equity-settled share-based payments ~ DAEREE AR1H A

ERERET - - - - - -
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (7,779) (7,779)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—Z#+-fA=+—H 3,203,513 40,609 12,238 73 (3,726,561)  (470,127)
In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman BERSEEANRE KRR ZKRMRE
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is BEIRA] DR FRAZER - A D ,,\E/\\j%%}[fiﬁi%
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that BRMNEMEBS KB ER  EHNEBSR
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the %ﬁkﬂﬁﬁpg;& |ER(EFE o

ordinary course of business immediately following the date
on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.
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29. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 29.

180

E_F_—F+_A=+—HLFE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREBRIGHE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities: RMETHEEMNAGE 2 EHEK :
Shareholder’s Other Lease
loans borrowings liabilities
BRREX HitrfE & HERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THET TET
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 A\—E-FF+-A=+—HK
“Z-—%—f—H 20,295 - 22,898
Changes from cash flows: Rensgit :
Drawdown b 9,659 - -
Interest paid BRFE = (174) -
Repayment of principal portion of EEEEREREHS
lease liabilities - - (10,874)
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENHEEAETE = = (562)
Total changes from financing cash flows: MERSREEHEE 9,659 - (11,436)
Other changes: Hih&s)
Interest expenses FEFX - 174 562
Gain on modification of leases MEEBT 2 iz = = (5,408)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - = (3,066)
Exchange difference b= - - 2,320
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—4%+-A=+—H 29,954 - 5,870
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—&E+-A=+—-HK
—E--_%—A—H 29,954 - 5,870
Changes from cash flows: Renegt :
Drawdown b 20,185 - -
Repayment Eb (1,725) - -
Repayment of principal portion of EBEHEEREASTS
lease liabilities - - (11,138)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ERHEAETS - - (781)
Total changes from financing cash flows: BEFRSTERHEE 18,460 - (11,919)
Other changes: Hip s
Interest expenses FERZ - - 781
Additional N - - 28,866
Gain on modification of leases HEEBTT iz - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAT - - -
Exchange difference BEH R - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-_—_#+-A=1—H 48,414 - 23,598
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30. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

31.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material
capital and other commitments (2021: contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$Nil).

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011
(the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options to (i) any eligible employee (means any employee,
whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors and non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries and any invested entity;
(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity; (iii) any customer of the Group
or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or technological support or other
services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v) any
shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity. The period of
the Scheme shall not be more than ten years from the date
of adoption of the Scheme.

30. EARR H i

31.

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT

RZE-_—_F+_F=+—H A&EEL
EEREARAEMAE(ZZ=—F : BE
ME - BEMRENETNEREESSE
HEHBTT) o

B

RARBREBE-—ER_E——FNLATHEA
BRBZRBRFES —ABBRAE S (5
g1 - RIFFHE - EFARTIIALRHK
BREARBARBEND - ()ARA] - &
ERMBRARREMAREERZEMNS
EREEGEEMNE2RFEBES @ BRI
AATESRIFATES) : (IAAKEIT
AR B ARRERMAIREERHEEE MK
PRTS Z (AL ¢ (i) AR B ERAAR
BERZEMET : (vAAKES @A
REBREHRIE FEIARMEIE
RIS 2 ER AT HERE + R(V)ERBER
SAKEELMKERBIREAAIREER
SAKEIMKERABREAMIKEER
BOIZEAREF2ERARFAEARE 28R
EF]) - HEZBENNREHEL2EEHAE
B2 BRME L S B S B &Sk AR
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31.

182

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
grant. An option period to be determined by the directors
is at their absolute discretion shall not be more than ten
years after the date of the grant of the share option (“Option
Period”). Options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during the Option Period
after the option has been granted. The exercise price should
not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s
share on the date of grants, which must be a trading day;
or (i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its
shares.

No share option was granted under the Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

31.

BeE(E)

BRIEES AR RIRERALE - BIEFTEIA T
Bz BEREL R 2RO BETBBAAN
NEIRBEFEIE R BITRM 210% °
Stoh - BITERBEET SR H MM ARITE 2
BREmMT FROTZAQNBROEE £
R THEBEBARATHERTERGLG Z
30% ° RE 1218 A #AfE A A mER A+
Rz ERESRZBRHEETBRBAAR
R EIPMEREE B BT Z21% © fHRA
REIEERBHB I IEHNITE B R MK
EREZHEBEAREZ BREBRBARQT
AR Z0.1% & {E{EiEB5,000,000% 7T -
Bl A 7B 1S AR A B AR BB E o

gt BlESAN KL A EE28H
HAR MR A - T &R IR RS R B
1AL - BREABSTHESE2ENE
BT ETSEBEERLERERRRERt
FRBBESMR] - REBRER  BRK
R0 B I A R A R BR G B IR SR BE B T
RITE - TEEIFERAT =2 Z2E&D
EF()VARFRMOEE : (i) AR FBRHRER
HAEM(WEARRSR) ZWHIE © k(ii)A
RAIRMREBEERBAHIAEXZHEZ
FHWKHIE -

FRAENBRGO XN 2R EME K AEEX
e REBEBRBEITRMIN - BEEFENE
TE 1508 [0 3 S S BB AR -

BE_Z2_—_F#k-_FT_-_—F+= A
=t HIFERERBEIR B -
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 31. BRE(E)
The Company K\E]
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Share at 31 December during at 31 December
Name of category of participant option type 2021 the year 2022
R-B=-% R-BZZf
+ZA +ZA
Er=[E ==
SREERNER BRESD HATE FEREN HAR{TE
Employees =]
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,665,000 - 1,665,000
04/2017 2,536,000 - 2,536,000
Consultants B
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,647,000 - 1,647,000
04/2017 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
8,238,500 - 8,238,500

During the year, no (2021: O share options (adjusted after

share consolidation)) share options were lapsed.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted, as the directors consider
that the share options granted is an extra incentive to the
consultants and no specified identifiable goods or services to

be provided to the Group.

FA - HEERE(ZZE_—F : 0HBER
B(ERMHAHRARE))BRK -

HRESRSAE L ZBIRET &R E M
YR 2 BRINEED - Ro b 4 5 7] AN 5= [ 42 it
ZHRER BRI Em RS - RERETL
NS EEURDRERNNRRZZA
FEDE2EMELEREZ AFEETE -
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31.

184

2F_—

F+-A=t—BLLFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at R-ZE_—_FR_FE-_—F+_A=1+—
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: H 27 B R R R R R -
Contractual Number of options
exercise BERELE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RRAEHERE
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2022 2021
ANfTEE
(RRBAEBH
RiAH HR & #AE) BREANED ZBCCE —E_F
Employees
&g
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
16 September 2016 15 September 2025
“2-AFNATAR  ZE-RFEAATAAE ZE-REAATAEE 9B 10F
ZZ-ENATRA  ZZ-REAATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“E-1FNAtAR  ZE-REAATAAE —E—tENAATAEE 9T 10F
“Z—tEnATHR _7_£EHH+£H
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-REAATAR ZE-REAATARE ZE-\EAATABE 9T 105
ZI-\fhAtRE ZZ-RENATAA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-NENATABE 9ET 105
ZE-NENATRR  ZEZRENATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
ZE-TFAATAR ZE-REAATARE ZE2ZEFAATARE 9T 105
ZECEEAATAR ZEZRENATEA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2017 BSepmnmer2025
“Z-ENANE :{ /\EHH/\Hi E—+ENANAZE 5828 10F
ZE—tFNANR _q_iiﬂﬂﬂﬁ
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
—E-ENANE -z /\Eﬁﬁ/\ﬁi “Z-\ENANEE 5828 10E
ZZ-N\FNANR “E-RFAANA
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) CEERE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at N E - —FR BB —F+-_A=+—
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: (Cont’d) HBRREERRREERT - (&)
Contractual Number of options
exercise BRERE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RRAEHHERE
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2022 2021
RRTRE
(RRBEH
RUAH HR & #AE) BREANES g St —EF
Employees (Cont’d)
E& (&)
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
Z-REAANR ZB ﬂinﬂﬂai Z-NENANEE 5.82%T 10%
Z-NENANR _j_ﬁinﬂﬂa
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-R"ENANR “ZENANBE ZE-TEAANBE 5828 106
ZEZTEAANR ZEZREAANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“Z-"ENANE “E-AFNANBE Z—E--FNANRZE 58287 108
“E--FNANR “Z-RFENANE
Consultants
BE
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
—“Z-RFNA1+/H :T ﬂijlﬁH’/\\H: “E-RENATAER 9L 10
“F-rFNAtTRR —E-AfnATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-tENATAEE 9T 105
—E-t¥nA+HA ,7,£¢HH+£H
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-TFAATAR ZE-REAATARE Z2-\FAATABZE 9T 105
“E-\ENATEAE ZZ-RfnATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-REAATABRE ZE-NEAATARE 9T 105
“Z-NFENAtRA —Z-RFAATRA
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31.

186

2F_—

F+-A=t—BLLFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at R-EBE-_—_FR_FTE_—F+_A=1+—
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: (Cont’d) B BB ER R & HnT o (8)
Contractual Number of options
exercise EREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RRBEHARE
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2022 2021
ANTEE
(RRBEH
RS BRE s %AB) BRESNES ZBIZE 3
Consultants (Cont’d)
R ()
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 15 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-RFNATARE ZE-AFNATAHE ZESEENATABEE 9T 105
“Z-ZFENA+RA  ZE-RFAATRA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2017 BSepmnmer2025
“Z-"ENANA “Z-"ENANBE Z—+ENANAZE 5828 108
“E—tFNANR _7_£¢RHAH
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“E-R"ENANA -z /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi E-N\ENANAZE 5828 10F
ZE-N\FAANR _i_ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
—E-"ENANE -z /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi “E-NENANAZE 5828 10F
T-NEnANA “Z-RFAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REAANBE  ZZZEEARARE 5.828T 10%
“Z-EFAANR ZE-RFAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“E-R"ENANR “Z-ENANBE ZE--FNANBE 582 105
“Z--FNANR “Z-RFNANR
8,238,500 8,238,500
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 31. BIRAE ()
The Company had 7,207,200 and 7,207,200 share options R-ZE_—_FR_FE-_—F+_A=1+—
exercisable at 31 December 2022 and 2021 after share B ARalrlkHEHEET7,207,2001
consolidation and the weighted average exercise prices K.7,207,20010 B RS #ER] F17(FE - R ==
of share options exercisable at 31 December 2022 and R ZTEZ—F+ZA=+—H R
2021 after share consolidation are HK$7.28 and HK$7.28, Be1n & 1 rl i T{E BB AR E R INfE LB 1T 1E
respectively. BH Rl AT7.288 L Kk7.288 T ©
As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 8,238,500 RZEBE-__F+_A=+—H ' xXAaR
(2021: 8,238,500) share options outstanding under the 218 E8,238,5000 (—&FE = —F ¢
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.3% (2021: 8,238,500 ) M AT EARE - (hRA
0.3%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The AINERBZEEBTRHA0.3% (= —
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under F:03%) c RARNEIRBEREET -
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the BETER TEREBSERARQ A ETT
issue of 8,238,500 (2021: 8,238,500) additional ordinary 8,238,500/ (== = —4 : 8,238,500%)
shares of the Company and additional share capital of TN BAY - 0 E A FEINR AN,647,700
HK$1,647,700 (2021: HK$1,647,700) and share premium BIL(ZE = —F : 1,647,700%8 70) K&
of HK$56,800,730 (2021: HK$56,800,730) (before issue 7 % 8 56,800,730 T (Z & = — £ -
expenses). 56,800,730 7T ) (R EA/TF S AT) ©
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share S E MNEFEHITEENT
options are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-&F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
NETLITEE BREZR METHIEE EhriEsE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
B T4 BT T
(restated)
(mE3)
Outstanding at beginning of the year 1% K 17{E 7.09 8,238 7.09 8,238
Forfeited/Lapsed during the year ERRI/ KK 7.09 - 7.09 -
Outstanding at end of year FEREAITR 7.09 8,238 7.09 8,238
Note: The number of share options and exercise prices were Mick : BEARFESE R RITEEIIRERMD A H1E

adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation.

As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 2.70
years (2021: 3.70 years).

During the year, share-based payments expense of HKSNIL
(2021: HK$2,160,000) have been charged to profit or loss for
the year.

2022 i FEBLEBEERERAT

R-ZBE-_—€+=-A=+—080 ' WR1TE
BAIRENINETFSHBRE LTI AE2.70F
(ZZ——% :3.70%F) -

FR - UBRDBERONRAXTET(=

T - —4 : 2,160,000/ 70 ) RN ARFEEE
AR o
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32.

188

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year.

Compensation of Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors, chief financial officer and legal counsel of the
Company. The remuneration of the key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends. The remuneration of the key management (excluding
directors) was as follows:

2. AEAETRS

BREFMBREREMIDFLNRZZI
AEENFREBBTBEATRS -

FTEEEASHE

AEBZTI2EBEABNARAESR - &
FMBEMERER - TEEEAE ZH
EIHEFMEEERBEEAMALTZRRR
MEBEETE TEEBAB(IBHEE
F)ZHeBENT ¢

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Salaries and other benefits HEREMER 1,100 1,717
Retirement benefits scheme RIRBFFT B R

contributions 89 28

1,189 1,745
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33. R B A a2
Issued ordinary Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests  Principal activities and

Name of company registration capital held by the Company  place of operations
ERTEER ARRRERR
AFER ERRY /R RA/HRER EERLA TEERREENY
Directly  Indirectly
E& i

HK International Regenerative Gentre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Healthcare business, Hong Kong
BEEARREEETLERAT Bk 10087 EEREXE BE
CRMI'HK Health Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Healthcare business, Hong Kong
hEE(FRRRERERAR Bk 187 EEREXE BE
CRMI HK Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(FREXERERAR B 1% RARR Bk
CRMI HK Health Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE (R RRIAERAR B 1% REARR Bk
CRMI HK Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(FR)REERAR B 1% REARR Bk
CRMI HK Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
HEE(ER)ERERAT B 1% RARR Bk
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited British Virgin Islands US$20,000 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
HELNESEERKARAT EBRNES 20,000%7 REARR Bk

The PRC - - 100% Investment holding, the PRC
hEE(IH)BXEEERARDA Gilei REARR  hE

The PRC - - 100% Investment holding, the PRC
hEE(TH) BERRERAR Gilei REARR  hE

The PRC - - 100% Investment holding, the PRG
hEE(TH)AFEREAERAA Gilei REARR  hE

The PRC = - 100% Healthcare Business, the PRC
LARERRERANERAT Gilei BEREXE 1
Longar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
HRRARRAR EBRNES %7 RARR Bk
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BTSRRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

190

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in M=k -

T —®+_A=+—HIFE

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
of the Group for the period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group at the end of the period. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the period or at any time during the period.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial

assets and liabilities:

33. RHIB A B 2 s

(%)

ERIHEERREIBEZEASEAR
EEIARAEENREEFEETRS
Mz AREENBLGR - EFRAR 0 JIH

H o b B~ A 2w

£ o

EPNPN

B & 7%@3@5’5)’1

EMBAREREREMERT -

REE SN BN ERERE - SEREA
AEEERNERES -

e (R ) B R

RAFRIAT B ER

HRERAREREE -

34. cEERESHEBERE

TR EREERABZKREE :

2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHERAGTENSREE ¢
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 71 208
Deposits and other receivables e & Hith Y GRIE 245,394 206,505
Cash and bank balance H& RIRTTHE R 1,849 9,929
247,314 216,642
Financial liabilities cRAasE
Financial liabilities measured HHEKAFTENEREAE
at amortised costs:
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S 3RIE 53 89
Accrued charges and other payables FEsT &R R E A EERIE 13,472 10,540
Shareholder’s loans fEERE R 48,414 29,954
61,939 40,583
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RaR Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. Bf i = b i 1B

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has a written
risk management policy in place in relation to credit risk
associated with loan receivables, if any.

The board of directors meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s
exposure to a variety of risks associated with financial
instruments which arise from the Group’s operating
and investing activities. Generally, the Group employs
conservative strategies regarding its risk management to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how these risks are
mitigated are described as follows:

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of
their financial assets/liabilities in their own functional
currencies. Currently the Group does not have
foreign currency hedging policy but the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and those at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group monitors the
interest rate risk exposure on a continuous basis and
adjusts the portfolio of financial assets and liabilities
when necessary. A reasonable change in interest rate
in the next twelve months is assessed to result in
immaterial change in the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses. Changes in interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of equity.

AEERRAFERGBRETRERELD
hEReR T AmMAEN KRR - BBKR
REREHESAR(BEEERR - FIXER
REMERRAR) EERRMASHE SR
o NEEGIFTREWER (A ) BEDH
EERRzEmMERELRR

ExerHEFeRETOMAEFER
B NEBNREEAKREMAZBEREAE
BRERREXBEL ST AZTH
B —mME  AKREHREREERS
FERE - ARRENLRERRIUEE B
e o EZES R T AMERE R K ED
DR BERE AT

(a) SME &z

HRAEBETEAREEERFEXR
HHEeMEEAFE  WASEEHER
PE R B R o A E B AL ESMNE
HHMEER BEEE-—HEEHEINE
BN AT EEEZEEPERIMNE
B -

(b) FIFEEfE

B eMEERBEREAE
EERRESRENXER - mAREE
MNEZSBMEENBEEAREHER
RFENERR - AEBEFEEIZET
REfy YRV ERHBRSREER
BEZHEE RART_EAMERZ
BEEHRAETHARERFENE
BREABRYESAEE - F R
B AR B 2 H AR I

By 488
= °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

192

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the Group’s statement of financial position
are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. As at 31 December 2022, 72% (2021:
92%) of the total receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s largest debtor and 75% (2021: 94%)
of the total trade receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s top five debtors (all private companies
incorporated in Hong Kong and the PRC). Since the
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are
deposited with major banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables is estimated
using a provision matrix with reference to past default
experience of the debtor, current market condition
in relation to each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs
also incorporated forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions
that may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables.

B ERERE(E)

(c)

EEAR

AEBZHBERAERRNEINCHEE
WEEEEEHNRBEBE(WME) -
ArEBZEERREEZXERFZD
RERATE REKEME LT %&
Bl v Z AR I E B R R E
2. HREERIK - K_E::¢+_
A=4+—H BRFIBHET2% (=
T —F :02%) SRR AEERAK
BIEA  MEREZRETS%(ZF
TF 4% EHFRAEBRAKRE
BA(EEHBRE B K B
TWFARR) c HRAEEEZEE
RAREERINE=ZFETRS
WBAREERRR - SR EERRKIZ
BE/HFRH - EELRITEBD
EHER  HNAKEESEWFIE
MR P EREZ D AR R AR T
¥ WASETESESKEREER
B o

AEERZHRIBITHEBRE - HRA

SEZRITHERABDERREE R
PR EBRTT IR RIRITHE
ZEERBER -

AEERBEN2HEBEEBERN
T EE S MEMBEFKANER

B - BHRURENBREEER
ERBBERMG  X2EEBAN

BEENRLE BRESEHARREN
BTmR - BHMEEBBETESER]
%%%FWAgfﬁWmﬁ ENRE
BEBLBEAR - IMARBIEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)
(c) Credit risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
recognised lifetime ECLs for its trade receivables
based on individually significant customer or the ageing
of customers collectively that are not individually
significant as follows:

35. B f&E b B X (4E)

(c)

EE R (E)

RZEZZFR=ZT=—F+= A
=+—H '  AEEEREENEZEER
FERNATEANEEBEFRRTE
REEZRIKFENEPEHEEE
B FBOT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average Gross average Gross
lifetime carrying Lifetime lifetime carrying Lifetime
ECLs amount ECls ECLs amount ECls
T3 BREEDHH AT EEESHN
2 HEH HHEE 2 HEH HHEE
FEBAR IREAE B8 FEER RE A B8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEx TR % THET THT
Trade receivables B ZEU R 1 71 - 1 208 =
Other receivables  E IR 4 228,194 9,964 2 145,793 2,688

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. Save as those disclosed in the financial
statements, the directors believe that there is no other
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits.

SEMEYRHRIANS - EEEEER
BEAELCEMBEERE AR
ARSI B WE BIF R BERE R
ERIFEG - BREA TSR AABEE D
EERR - NEEEMEWRTIER
ReMmARBLERTELMERNE
REERR -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

194

(d) Fair value

()

The directors of the Company consider the fair values
of the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities
are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short-term maturity of
these financial instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. The Group monitors its
risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
and other receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts, bank loans, lease liabilities and
shareholder’s loans.

35. B f&E b B X (4E)

(@)

(e)

AFE

ARBBEERRERAKREZZES
BTABAKINEHARRE - 8UR
BeRMEERABZAFERARE
BZEZRIFEK -

BN E TR

AEEZBRRDERERERDES
FTE HREFTHRCHRE B
MR RBEEFERK - AKHE
ERERADESE TAERRE
TRRNER ZTAFGFRES®T
AENeREE(JIME S EEFIAR
RUREBE) NI B UREARER

AEENEERBBERRITES
RITER HERERERER &
FHESHBEMRBEELZHEAHNT
fiy o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 35. M ERERE (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (e) mEBEZEE (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAVWNAREFBITESHEBERS
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s WERBRRHREOE - ZRDIRE
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based FIHRBBEBESRE (BEIETOF
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including R HEAEZE - WhIREREB B2
interest payment computed using contractual rates or, THAR R E A BT H ) RAE
if floating, based on current rates at the reporting date) AIREZAN Rz xF HERE «
and the earliest date the Group may be required to pay:
Repayable in
Total more than
contractual Repayable 1 year
Carrying undiscounted within 1 year but less than
amount cash flow or on demand 5 years
HEES: 3] MER BB1E
REE ZRERELE JEZREE BIRSFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT THT
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—
+=A=t+-H
Trade payables EUY 53 53 53 -
Accrued charges and other payables [Ext2 i I H fh JE {208 13,472 13,472 13,472 -
Shareholder’s loans REER 48,414 48,414 48,414 -
Lease liabilities HERE 23,598 25,026 10,860 14,166
72,012 86,965 72,799 14,166
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=Z-F
+=A=+-AH
Trade payables BN FE 89 89 89 -
Accrued charges and other payables [E&t2 i I E b (S 708 10,540 10,540 10,540 -
Shareholder’s loans BRER 29,954 29,954 29,954 -
Lease liabilities HERE 5,870 6,985 6,985 =
46,453 47,668 47,668 -
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36.

196

DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP

On 2 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with DS Premium Healthcare Limited
(“DS”), an independent third party, to dispose its entire
equity interests in and sale loan due by Biocell Technology
Limited to DS for a total consideration of HK$101 in cash.

On 30 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with DS to dispose its entire equity
interests in and sale loan due by Passion Strean Limited
and Frame Sharp Limited to DS for a total consideration of
HK$11,000,000 in cash.

On 30 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Nopo International Group Limited
(“Nop0”), an independent third party, to dispose its entire
equity interests in and sale loan due by Obagi Medical
Products Group Limited to Nopo for a total consideration of
HK$1,000,000 in cash.

On 29 June 2021, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with China e-Media Group Limited (“e-Media”),
an independent third party, to dispose the entire equity
interests in and sale loans due by subsidiaries of the Group
namely CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited, China Regenerative
Medicine Limited, Sino Stem Cell Clinical Application
Company Limited and China Stem Cell Therapy and
Technology Limited to e-Media for considerations of HK$404
in cash.

The above-mentioned disposed subsidiaries are collectively
“Disposal Group”.

36. EEHEEE

NZEBE-Z—F=A=-H AEFEBFIFE
=rEfrmEeRR AR ([EE)EILE
B AIEHHEERBRAEYRIES
RARIMEEREURARERNEEER
o BRERRES101ETT °

MR-ZEZ—F=H=+H  KAEEHEEH
AV BB - M2 & B R Passion
Strean Limited }2Frame Sharp Limited#y
EHEEARMELRNEEER - AR
B8 A3$£11,000,000% 7T °

RZFBE-_—F=A=+H AEEEB
E=FHERREEBRAR([FE])
FIVEE W 0 Mk S HE ERObagi
Medical Products Group Limited &) & 36
A% # LA &2 Obagi Medical Products Group
Limited & RMHEER - BRERE D
1,000,000/ 7T °

NRZEBE-Z—FXAZ+NB AXEFHEF
VYE=ZFTPHETFEHEBEERAF([E
HDAVEEHz RAEEHEARAEER
BETIHWEBARTRBEEESEYEMER
RNE - FRBAEBEREERAA - PEHHA
MERIRERBR A A K E®MEMEE KR
KT AR AR A2 BAAE A RZE QR
REEEER - REARES40487T ©

EXFrE HENBARGEAIHES
] e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 Hi2 —E - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP (CONT'D) 36. HEHEERE (&)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Disposal HEEERHEHHNEERABREE
Group as of the date of disposal were as follows: /(1 N
HK$’000
FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ER e 1,855
Current assets REEE
Inventories EE 979
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e W SR IE 13,658
Cash and bank balances R RIRITAERR 1,932
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payable B 5 REAM IR (118,008)
Contract liabilities BHBE (3,695)
Lease liabilities HEAE (3,066)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIBE E (674)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEEEFE (102,019)
Release of translation reserves upon HELSER
disposal of Disposal Group FRIR B #E 39,231
Derecognition of non-controlling interest HUH MR FE AR #E 21 113,278
Loss on disposal of the Disposal Group HEHESE 2 EiE 38,489
Total consideration by cash HBIE e NRE 12,001
Satisfied by: BT BEXAN
Cash RE 12,001
Total consideration by cash @I R(E 12,001
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHSMAFE
Cash consideration received BUWHEERE 12,001
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITEBREIRS (1,932)
10,069
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group has not
adopted any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose.

37. ERAEEHRREREF

AEBEEEACZBRER:

s REAKERBELLEZRS)  HER
PR 75 3R (2] 3 B 7 B A 45 £ 3 S SRR

N2
A
I

s MBAKEIBENMER: N

o RHESUAMBAKEZARERE
5 o

AREBEBEEE ST REEEERNRE
BRAGREEARBEERRERRD
%& TEEREERKREESFENREARK
BRRBEABAESD  BAKERS
’i§~ FEORI B A A 3 Ko FEOBI SR BE ME IR B 4
g o AEE R ARMEREABRSHE -

EEEREEaREAEEZER -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A7 = TR
MR E
RESULTS =
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—2-\& “2-NE —E-FE —E--£ —E-CE
+-F=+-B +-A=t-B +-F=t-B +-A=t-B +=A=t-A
LHHER BBEE LHHER IS BER LHHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TiEn
(Note (a)) (Note (a)(b)) (Note (a)(b))
(F3ka) (kb)) (MrE(a)(b)
(restated) (restated)
(#=3]) (mE7)
Revenue s 72,952 47,971 182,136 282,897 231,612
Cost of services provided/Cost of sales BRI 2R/ HEREK (45,946) (19,052) (140,328) (215,170) (193,989)
Gross profit E | 27,006 28,919 41,808 67,727 37,623
Other income 00N 23,857 18,111 16,032 6,082 4,518
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRY (134,695) (56,264) (6,747) (4,392) (3,604)
Administrative and other expenses THRARR (324,017) (201,055) (40,201) (43,054) (22,213)
Fair value gain/(loss) on contingent SRR B AR ENRS/ (BR)
consideration receivables (26,271) (4,587) - - -
Expected credit loss on trade or other Boa At ENTERREEER
receivables (139,006) (1,149) (663) (2,688) (7,276)
Reversal/(provision) of expected credit loss on E A el s BT A (= &6 1E
other receivables e/ (%) 2,458 (19,636) (36,762) 41,353 -
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets fair ~ RAFERNBHIIEZ 2R
value through profit or loss NFERE/ (BR) (113,808) 1,224 2,340 = -
Write off of deposits for acquisition of HEKERBLRRE
subsidiaries - - (100,000) - -
Impairment of goodwil BERE (202,292) - - - -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment %1% B KR ERE (168,486) (94,118) - - -
Impairment of other intangible assets At EVEERE (275,896) (70,697) = = -
Impairment of right-of-use assets RREAERE - (52,049) - - -
Finance costs SBER (21,654) (5,343) (17,906) (736) (781)
Loss from discontinued operations BRERERER = = (284,349) (38,479) -
Profit/(loss) before income tax RSB AER/ (58) (1,352,799) (456,644) (462,448) 25,813 8,267
Income tax credit/(expense) FiBES/ (Fx%) 68,884 8,901 (12,380) (12,465) (3,712)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (BR) (1,283,915) (447,749) (438,828) 13,348 4,555
Attributable to: oI :
Owners of the Company ARABRBA (1,193,501) (396,006) (404,226) 13,348 4,555
Non-controlling interests Rk EER (90,414) (52,737) (34,602) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (BR) (1,283,915) (447,749) (438,828) 13,348 4,555

(@) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial

statements.

(a) ABRYBRFHEZELEAMBRE -

(b)  No separate disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued  (b)
operations were made on the financial summary.

MGREL RS BEBHEREEBRELE
B -
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YA 1~z oh
& E
RESULTS (CONT’D) ¥E (&)
As at 31 December
RT=A=t-A
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—F-N\£ “I-0E S -3 ZZz-F “BICE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TAT TAn Tian Tin
Total assets BEE 1,422,923 553,933 152,491 259,141 275,911
Total liabilities Bak (855,660) (536,300) (207,641) (147,413) (171,995)
Shareholders’ funds hEés 567,263 17,633 (55,150) 111,728 103,916
Note: The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. Mizk : BARSIEWIFARK BRI 2 — 21 o
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